New Hagpdive  Trp GTATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

Department of Transportation

Victoria F. Sheehan William Cass, P.E.
Commissioner Assistant Commissioner
His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu Bureau of Rail & Transit
and the Honorable Council June 2, 2017

State House
Concord, NH 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Transportation to pay an amount not to exceed $2,070,125 to Advance Transit, Inc. Wilder,
Vermont, (Vendor 166573), to procure seven (7) replacement buses, two (2) replacement transit support vehicles and capital
equipment, effective upon Governor and Council approval through December 31, 2019. 92% Federal Funds, 8% Capital
General Funds.

Funding for this agreement is available in the State fiscal year 2018 and 2019 budget, contingent upon the availability and
continued appropriation of funds, with the authority to adjust encumbrances in each of the State fiscal years through the
Budget Office if needed and justified.

SFY 2018 SFY 2019

04-96-96-964010-2916
Public Transportation
072-500575 Grants to Non-Profits-Federal $1,248,300 $662,150
04-96-96-960030-7547
Capital Projects
034-500160 Major Equipment $101,250 $58,425

EXPLANATION

Advance Transit, Inc. is a private, not-for-profit organization providing public transportation service in the Upper Valley
region of New Hampshire and Vermont. Approximately three-fourths of Advance Transit’s ridership and service is in New
Hampshire.

This contract includes both Federal Transit Administration (FTA) 5339 and 5339(b) funding for bus-related capital. The FTA
5339 funding is via apportioned funds, for which Advance Transit competed with other NH-based agencies, and the FTA
5339(b) funds are discretionary funds, which NHDOT received for a project that it submitted to the FTA on behalf of
Advance Transit.

With regards to the FTA 5339 apportioned funds, the Department released a public notice on July 29, 2016 announcing the
availability of funding from the FTA Section 5339 Bus and Bus Facilities program for eligible capital projects. Proposals
were solicited from public agencies and private nonprofit organizations engaged in public transportation services. Four transit
agencies applied by the September 22, 2016 deadline and all four transit agencies were awarded funds for eligible projects.
The four transit agencies are: Advance Transit, Inc., Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Tri-County
CAP and UNH/Wildcat Transit.

Section 5339 funds awarded to Advance Transit, Inc. from the Section 5339 solicitation is for the procurement of two (2)
heavy-duty 35-foot low floor transit buses, four (4) light-duty cutaway buses, two (2) replacement transit support vehicles,
and capital equipment including bus engine overhauls and a rebuilt bus transmission. The new vehicles will replace existing
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vehicles that have met their minimum useful life at time of delivery and will enable Advance Transit’s fleet of vehicles to
continue to operate at optimal efficiency, thus providing the quality service that their riders have come to expect.

A project evaluation committee consisting of three Department staff from the NHDOT Bureau of Rail and Transit
reviewed and scored the 5339 applications submitted for projects. The evaluation committee members included: Fred
Butler (Public Transportation Administrator), Karen Jennison (Transit Grants Coordinator), and Carol Spottiswood
(Transit Project Coordinator). Each reviewer evaluated and scored applications based on criteria as indicated in the
application materials. Every application met the Department’s criteria for inclusion in its public transit funding plan and
will be awarded separate amounts for the aforementioned transit systems.

The evaluation matrix and scores are provided below for reference:

This capital request describes how it effectively addresses a demonstrated community

10%

need.
The applicant has the fiscal and technical capacity and adequate budget to operate service o

: o . 15%
associated with this capital request.
The applicant has successful experience in providing transportation services. 15%
The applicant demonstrates involvement in and support for the project, financial and
otherwise, on the part of citizens and local government. (e.g., letters of support, willing to 10%
provide local match >20%, etc.)
Is the request for a replacement or expansion? If replacement, has the existing vehicle or 10%
facility to be replaced met its useful life? ¢
The applicant articulates a long-term commitment to continue the project beyond the 10%

availability of the requested grant funds, e.g., ongoing maintenance costs.

The applicant successfully demonstrates service efficiency and effectiveness, measured in
ridership, service miles and hours, costs, and fare recovery. New applicants must 15%
demonstrate the ability to measure performance and achieve goals.

The applicant complies with relevant Federal and state regulations, and has a history of
compliance with regulations and reporting requirements. New applicants must demonstrate 15%
sufficient resources for compliance.

Advance Transit

2 ea. 35+ foot 33&2 low floor heavy duty bus 90.30% Awarded
4 ea. 30'-34'duty bus medium duty bus 90.30% Awarded
1 ea. Service Truck 86.30% Awarded
1 ea. Service Vehicle 86.00% Awarded
2 ea. Bus Engine Overhaul 85.00% Awarded
1 ea. Bus rebuilt transmission 85.00% Awarded

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties

1 ea. <30’ 12&2 bus 82.50% Awarded
1 ea. <30’ 16&2 bus 82.50% Awarded
1 ea. <30' 27&2 bus 82.00% Awarded
3 ea. Farebox replacement 80.70% Awarded
1 ea. Farebox reader system 80.70% Awarded

Tri-County Community Action Program
1 ea. Bidirectional Scan Tool Kit 78.50% Awarded
1 ea. Wheel Alignment System 77.50% Awarded




University of NH/Wildcat Transit
2 ea. Bus Maintenance Lift 90.50% Awarded
1 ea. West Edge Parking Lot AVL Display 85.80% Awarded
1 ea. Maine Street West Bus pads, shelters, o
lighting and AVL 85.80% Awarded
1 ea. Bus washing facility engineering & design 84.80% Awarded

Note: Every application met the Department’s criteria for inclusion in its SFY 2018-2019 public transit funding
plan and will be awarded separate amounts for the aforementioned transit systems.

With regards to the FTA 5339(b) discretionary funds, which were awarded to Advance Transit in September 2016, those
funds are for the procurement one (1) heavy-duty 35-foot transit replacement bus. A competitive Federal funding
opportunity was released by FTA on March 29, 2016. The NHDOT applied on behalf of Advance Transit for four (4)
replacement heavy-duty 35 foot low floor transit buses and was awarded funding for one bus. Grant funds were secured in
January 2017 and this project is included with this capital request.

The total project cost is $1,910,450, which includes both FTA Section 5339 and 5339(b) funds for a total of seven (7) ADA
accessible bus replacements at 85% Federal ($1,809,650) and capital equipment to include two service vehicle replacements,
two engine overhauls and one rebuilt transmission at 80% Federal ($100,800). State Capital match in the amount of
$159,675 will provide 7.5% matching funds for the seven bus replacements and Advance Transit will provide the remaining
local match of $184,875 (7.5% for bus replacements and 20% for capital equipment). This contract reflects only the Federal
and State portions of the project for a total contract amount of $2,070,125. Advance Transit, Inc. will procure the equipment
following Federal procurement guidelines and the Department will hold title to the buses until their disposition. Advance
Transit will be listed as the owner on the vehicle title and the NH Department of Transportation will be identified as the lien
holder. Advance Transit, Inc. will pay the vendor(s) for the vehicles and capital equipment and will submit an invoice for
reimbursement to the Department.

In the event that Federal funds are unavailable, additional general funds will not be requested to support this program.
The Agreement has been approved by the Attorney General as to form and execution and the Department will verify the
necessary funds are available pending enactment of the Fiscal Year 2018 and 2019 budget. Copies of the fully executed
agreement are on file at the Secretary of State’s Office and the Department of Administrative Services’ Office, and

subsequent to Governor and Council approval will be on file at the Department of Transportation.

Your approval of this resolution is respectfully requested.

Sincerely,

lbﬂv F. )AL«J..,‘

Victoria F. Sheehan
Attachments Commissioner



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 5/8/15)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 State Agency Name
NH Department of Transportation

1.2 State Agency Address
PO Box 483, 7 Hazen Dr., Concord, NH 03220-0483

1.3 Contractor Name
Advance Transit, Inc.

1.4 Contractor Address
PO Box 1027, Billings Farm Road, Wilder VT 05088

1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6 Account Number
Number

802-295-1824 04-96-96964010-2916-072-

500575 and 64-94 -G b~
G60030-7547-63U- 500[b0

1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation

December 31, 2019 $2,070,125.00

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
Michelle Winters, Administrator, Bureau of Rail & Transit

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
603-271-2468

1.11 Contractor Signature

Sy isnkiodspb—

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

J. M. Tonkovch, President

£ s £
.3 Acknowledgerlent: State of VW,County of [(/'f“ ?/(//4’4/(

‘2(” 2 '7before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily
proven to bethe person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity

indicated in block 1.12.

1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace 2 g 5/ %&\A‘

[Seal]

1.13.2 Name and Title of NotaZ)or Justice of the Peace

Cliyctor loy

d%son; /1/0«"(&“01

1.14 Stat/eﬁency Signature
Date: [/ // 7

1.157 Name aqﬂa”ﬁif&qfﬁlpéﬁiﬁgency Signatory

Director
B

Aemnautics,
1.16 Approval by the epartment of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

By:

Director, On:

1.17 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)

By:

WY/ ke

1.18 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council (if applicable)

By:

On:
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“State”), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor”) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(“Services™).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hereunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 (“Effective Date™).

3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the avaiiability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. Inthe event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until suich funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Coritractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.
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5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.

5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity”), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this

Contractor Initials'@
Date
st
p



Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this

Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or

Fer successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
my dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,

the Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.
8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default”):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
-iod from the date of such notice until such time as the State
iermines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.
9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.
9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data

.uires prior written approval of the State.
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10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report”) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be
subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $1,000,000per occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate ; and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New

Hampshire.
Contractor Initials @i
Date :ﬁ 5 F’j )



14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The certificate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each certificate(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION,

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(“Workers’ Compensation”).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers” Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers’ Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers’ Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no
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such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

Contractor Initials@

Date
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ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.

EXHIBITS TO CONTRACT

EXHIBIT A Scope of Services
EXHIBIT B Budget
EXHIBIT C Special Provisions

Certificate of Good Standing

Certificate of Corporate Vote

Certificate of Insurance

Federal Clauses and Federal Certifications

2 CFR Part 200

Social Service Documents to Include:
Financial Report
Board of Directors

Key Personnel and salaries
Resumes



ADVANCE TRANSIT INC.
EXHIBIT A

SCOPE OF SERVICE

A.1. The Contractor, Advance Transit, Inc., will procure three (3) 35+ foot low-floor heavy duty
transit buses, four (4) 30-34 foot medium duty transit buses, one (1) service truck, one (1) service
automobile, two (2) rebuilt bus engines, and one (1) rebuilt bus transmission. The transit vehicles
and capital equipment are eligible capital expenses under Federal Transit Administration (FTA)
guidelines and will replace existing transit vehicles and capital equipment that has exceeded the
minimum useful life. The replacement vehicles and equipment are needed to continue to
efficiently and effectively provide public transit service in the NH Upper Valley area.

The contract will provide funding through the NH Department of Transportation (NHDOT), from
the FTA Section 5339 Bus and Bus Facilities Program, for 85% of the cost to purchase seven (7)
transit vehicles and 80% of the cost to purchase a service truck, service automobile, two (2)
rebuilt bus engines, and one (1) rebuilt bus transmission, not to exceed $1,910,450 Federal. State
capital funds will pay 7.5% of the non-federal portion of the seven (7) transit buses, not to exceed
a maximum of $159,675. The remaining balance of the non-federal portion, $184,875, will be
provided by the Contractor.

The Contractor may submit a written request to NHDOT’s Commissioner or designee
(hereinafter the “NHDOT”) to modify the type and/or quantity of capital buses and equipment
detailed in the scope and budget, provided that said changes are within the contract budget
amount. Said written request must contain sufficient details to support and substantiate the
requested change(s). Within 30 days of receipt of the Contractor’s written request NHDOT will
provide a written decision to the Contractor as to whether or not approval is granted.

Advance Transit will purchase the transit vehicles and capital equipment in compliance with all
applicable Federal regulations and guidance including FTA Circular 4220.1F, “Third Party
Contracting Guidance,” or most recent.



B.1 The total contract amount is $2,070,125 and is comprised of FTA Section 5339 funds
($1,910,450) and State Capital Match ($159,675), whereas the total project cost is $2,255,000 as
it includes additional local matching funds to be provided by Advance Transit. The table below
summarizes the funds:

EXHIBIT B

BUDGET

Replacement 35+ foot Low Floor

Heavy Duty, Diesel 3 $1,147,500 $101,250 | $101,250 | $1,350,000
Replacement 30-34 foot medium duty transit

bus, Diesel 4 $662,150 $58,425 | $58,425 $779,000
Replacement Service Truck 1 $36,000 $9,000 $45,000
Replacement Service Automobile 1 $21,600 $5,400 $27,000
Rebuilt Bus Engine 2 $32,000 $8,000 $40,000
Rebuilt Bus Transmission 1 $11,200 $2,800 $14,000
TOTAL = 0 & o | $1910450 | 5159675 | $184,875 | $2,255,000

FTAS
$1,910,450 | $159,675 $2
$1,910450 |  $159,675 | $184,875 |

B.2 The Contractor shall submit appropriate procurement documentation to the State for review and
approval prior to any procurement. Upon approval, the Contractor may proceed with the
procurement and submit an invoice to the NHDOT for reimbursement of project expenses in
compliance with Federal guidance, including FTA Third Party Procurement guidelines and FTA

Circular 4220.1F or most recent.




EXHIBIT C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

There are no modifications, deletions, or additions to the Form P-37, 22. Special
Provisions.



State of New Hampshire
Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC. is
a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on January 12, 1984. I further certify
that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State’s office have been received and is in good standing as far as this

office is concerned.

Business ID: 52688

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 3rd day of April A.D. 2017.

Fir o

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State




ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.

ABSTRACT OF CORPORATE MINUTES

The following is a true abstract from minutes of the meeting of the Board of Directors of Ad-
vance Transit, Inc. on March 19, 1987 which meeting was duly called at which a quorum was
present:

On a motion duly made and seconded, it was voted to authorize the President, to accept grants
and awards and enter into contracts from time to time with the State of Vermont's Agency of
Transportation, or New Hampshire Department of Transportation, and to sign and otherwise fully
execute such acceptances and contracts and any related documents requested by vote of this gov-
erning board until such time as his successor is elected or appointed."

I certify the foregoing vote is still in effect and has not been revoked, rescinded or modified.

I further certify that James M. Tonkovich is the duly elected President of this corporation and
still qualified and serving in such capacity.

/)/%Z L7 S(Lé/r T
Véai J. Chesnut (Date)

Assistant Secretary

"No corporate seal.”

STATE OF VERMONT
COUNTY OF WINDSOR

On/% 2(7120' [before the undersigned officer personally appeared the person identified in the
foregoing certificate, known to me (or satisfactorily proven) to be the Assistant Secretary of the
corporation identified in the foregoing certificate, and acknowledge that he executed the forego-
ing certificate.

In witness whereof I hereunto set my hand and official seal.
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

ADVATRA-01 MKAVANAGH

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

06/23/2017

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
SERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

IMPORTANT:

If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.

if SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER
Hickok & Boardman, Inc.

346 Shelburne Rd
Burlington, VT 05401

GONTACT Melissa Kavanagh
(AIC Vo, Exty: (802) 383-1621

[ 8% voy:(802) 658-0541

k. mkavanagh@hbinsurance.com

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
insUReR A : National Interstate Ins Co
INSURED insurer 8 : Acadia Insurance Company 31325
Advance Transit, Inc. nsurer ¢ : Great American E&S Ins Co 37532
PO Box 1027 ivsurer 0 : Tokio Marine Specialty Insurance Company {23850
Wilder, VT 05088
INSURERE :
INSURERF :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THiS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED 8Y THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR ADDL |SUBR

POLICY EFF POLICY EXP

LIR TYPE OF INSURANCE INSD | WvD POLICY NUMBER (MMDDIYYYY) | (MMDDIYYYY) LIMITS
A | X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE N 5,000,000
cLams-mane | X | occur X GLR 024222503 07/01/2017 | 07/01/2018 | BAMASETORENTED T 300,000
L MED EXP (Any one person) $ 5'000
L PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | § 5,000,000
| GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 5,000,000
| X | pouicy e Loc PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | $ 5,000,000
OTHER: $
| AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY ?Eg“gggf,gﬁtfw@w LM $ 5,000,000
X | any auTO CAR 0242225-03 07/01/2017 | 07/01/2018 | BODILY INJURY (Per person) | $
| OWNED SCHEDULED
| | AUTOSONLY AUTOS BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | $
HIRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE
[ 1 AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY {Per accident) $
$
UMBRELLA LIAB OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE $
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE s
DED I ]RETENTIONs $
COMPENSATION PER QOTH-
B AND. éﬁ%ﬁoee'fas?umluw YIN X | sTature I ER
ANY PROPRIETORPARTNEREXECUTIVE WCA5153288-13 07/01/2017 | 07101/2018 | _ ., »ocoe R 1,000,000
OFF|CER!MEMBER EXCLUD N/A 1.000.000
(Mandatory in NH) E.L DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE] § WV
If yes, describe under 1,000,000
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L DISEASE - POLICY UIMIT | § VY,
C |Pollution Liability BTA 9991034-03 07/01/2017 | 07/01/2018 |$1,000,000 per Claim 2,000,000
D |Excess Employer Liab PUB544924 07/01/2017 | 07/01/2018 |$0 Retention 4,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)
The New Hampshire Department of Transportation is lncluded as an additional insured under the General Liability policy per attached form CG 2010 04/13.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

New Hampshire Department of Transportation
Bureau of Rail and Transit

PO Box 483

Concord, NH 03302

|

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

\ 4
; \Q g {4\; am&\n

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



POLICY NUMBER: GLR 0574256 06 COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CG 201004 13
THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

ADDITIONAL INSURED - OWNERS, LESSEES OR
CONTRACTORS - SCHEDULED PERSON OR
ORGANIZATION

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

SCHEDULE

Name Of Additional Insured Person(s)
Or Organization(s)

Location({s) Of Covered Operations

ON FILE WITH THE COMPANY

CG 201004 13

Information required to complete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations.

A. Section Il — Who Is An Insured is amended to

include as an additional insured the person(s)
or organization(s) shown in the Schedule, but
only with respect to liability for "bodily injury",
"property damage" or "personal and adver-
tising injury" caused, in whole or in part, by:

1. Your acts or omissions; or

2. The acts or omissions of those acting on
your behalf;

in the performance of your ongoing operations
for the additional insured(s) at the location(s)
designaled above.

However:

1. The insurance afforded to such additional
insured only applies to the extent permitted
by law; and

2. If coverage provided to the additional in-
sured is required by a contract or agree-
ment, the insurance afforded to such addi-
tional insured will not be broader than that
which you are required by the contract or
agreement to provide for such additional
insured.

© Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2012

B. With respect to the insurance afforded to these

additional insureds, the following additional
exclusions apply:

This insurance does not apply to "bodily injury"”
or "property damage" occurring after:

1. All work, including materials, parts or
equipment furnished in connection with
such work, on the project (other than
service, maintenance or repairs) to be
performed by or on behalf of the additional
insured(s) at the location of the covered
aperatinns has been completed; or

2. That portion of "your work" out of which
the injury or damage arises has been put to
its intended use by any person or organiza-
tion other than another contractor or sub-
contractor engaged in performing opera-
tions for a principal as a part of the same
project.

Page 1 of 2



C. With respect to the insurance afforded to these 2. Available under the applicable Limits of

additional insureds, the following is added to Insurance shown in the Declarations;
Section Il — Limits Of Insurance: whichever is less.

If coverage provided to the additional insured is This endorsement shall not increase the appli-
required by a contract or agreement, the most cable Limits of Insurance shown in the Declara-
we will pay on behalf of the additional insured tions.

is the amount of insurance:
1. Required by the contract or agreement; or

Page 2 of 2 © Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2012 CG 201004 13



Federal Clauses



Fly America Requirements

Applicability — all contracts involving transportation of persons or property, by air between the U.S. and/or places
outside the U.S. These requirements do not apply to micro-purchases ($3,500 or less, except for construction
contracts over $2,000).

Contractor shall comply with 49 USC 40118 (the “Fly America” Act) in accordance with General Services
Administration regulations 41 CFR 301-10, stating that recipients and subrecipients of Federal funds and their
contractors are required to use US Flag air carriers for US Government-financed international air travel and
transportation of their personal effects or property, to the extent such service is available, unless travel by foreign
air carrier is a matter of necessity, as defined by the Fly America Act. Contractor shall submit, if a foreign air
carrier was used, an appropriate certification or memorandum adequately explaining why service by a US flag air
carrier was not available or why it was necessary to use a foreign air carrier and shall, in any event, provide a
certificate of compliance with the Fly America requirements. Contractor shall include the requirements of this
section in all subcontracts that may involve international air transportation.

Buy America Requirements (Rolling Stock)

Construction Contracts and Acquisition of Goods or Rolling Stock (valued at more than $150,000)

Contractor shall comply with 43 USC 5323(j) and 49 CFR 661, as amended by MAP-21 stating that Federal funds
may not be obligated unless steel, iron and manufactured products used in FTA-funded projects are produced in
the United States, unless a waiver has been granted by FTA or the product is subject to a general waiver. General
waivers are fisted in 49 CFR 661.7, and include software, microcomputer equipment and small purchases
(currently less than $150,000) made with capital, operating or planning funds. Separate requirements for rolling
stock are stated at 5323(j)(2)(C) and 49 CFR 661.11 and as amended by Map-21 (5325). Rolling stock must be
manufactured in the US and have a minimum 60% domestic content and adhere to contract term limitations. A
bidder or offeror shall submit appropriate Buy America certification to the recipient with all bids on FTA-funded
contracts, except those subject to a general waiver. Proposals not accompanied by a completed Buy America
certification shall be rejected as nonresponsive. This requirement does not apply to lower tier subcontractors.

Cargo Preference

Contracts involving equipment, materials or commodities which may be transported by ocean vessels. These
requirements do not apply to micro-purchases ($3,500 or less, except for construction contracts over $2,000).
Contractor shall: a. use privately owned US-Flag commercial vessels to ship at feast 50% of the gross tonnage
(computed separately for dry bulk carriers, dry cargo liners and tankers) involved, whenever shipping any
equipment, material or commodities pursuant to the underlying contract to the extent such vessels are available at
fair and reasonable rates for US flag commercial vessels; b. furnish within 20 working days following the loading
date of shipments originating within the US or within 30 working days following the loading date of shipments
originating outside the US, a legible copy of a rated, "on-board" commercial bill-of-lading in English for each
shipment of cargo described herein to the Division of National Cargo, Office of Market Development, Maritime
Administration, Washington, DC 20590 and to the recipient (through contractor in the case of a subcontractor's
bill-of-lading.); c. include these requirements in all subcontracts issued pursuant to this contract when the
subcontract involves the transport of equipment, material or commodities by ocean vessel.

Energy Conservation

All Contracts except micro-purchases ($3,500 or less, except for construction contracts over $2,000)
Contractor shall comply with mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency, stated in the state
energy conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy & Conservation Act.

Clean Water

Applicability — All Contracts and Subcontracts over $150,000. Contractor shall comply with all applicable
standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended, 33 USC
1251 et seq. Contractor shall report each violation to the recipient and understands and agrees that the recipient
shall, in turn, report each violation as required to FTA and the appropriate EPA Regional Office. Contractor shall



include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding $100,000 financed in whole or in part with FTA
assisfance.

Bus Testing
Contfractor [manufacturer] shall comply with 49 USC A5323(c) and FTA's implementing regulation 49 CFR 665, to
the extent they are consistent with 49 U.S.C. § 5318(e), as amended; and shall perform the following:

1) A manufacturer of a new bus model or a bus produced with a major change in components or configuration
shall provide a copy of the final test report to the recipient prior to the recipient's final acceptance of the first
vehicle.

2) A manufacturer who releases a report under para. 1 above shall provide notice to the operator of the testing
facility that the report is available to the public.

3) If the manufacturer represents that the vehicle was previously tested, the vehicle being sold should have the
identical configuration and major components as the vehicle in the test report, which must be provided to the
recipient prior to the recipient's final acceptance of the first vehicle. If configuration or components are not
identical, the manufacturer shall provide a description of the change and the manufacturer's basis for concluding
that it is not a major change requiring additional testing.

4) If the manufacturer represents that the vehicle is "grandfathered” (has been used in mass transit service in the
US before Oct. 1, 1988, and is currently being produced without a major change in configuration or components),
the manufacturer shall provide the name and address of the recipient of such a vehicle and the details of that
vehicle's configuration and major components.

Pre-Award & Post Delivery Audit Requirements

Pre-Award & Post-Delivery Audit Requirements - Applicability — Rolling Stock/Turnkey

Contractor shall comply with 49 USC 5323(l) and FTA's implementing regulation 49 CFR 663 and submit the
following certifications:

1) Buy America Requirements: Contractor shall complete and submit a declaration certifying either compliance or
noncompliance with Buy America. If contractor certifies compliance with Buy America, it shall submit
documentation listing:

A. Component and subcomponent parts of the rolling stock to be purchased identified by manufacturer of the
parts, their country of origin and costs; and

B. The location of the final assembly point for the rolling stock, including a description of the activities that will take
place at the final assembly point and the cost of final assembly.

C. Solicitation Specification Requirements: Contractor shall submit evidence that it will be capable of meeting the
bid specifications.

D. Federal Motor Vehicle Safety Standards (FMVSS): Contractor shall submit 1) manufacturer's FMVSS self-
certification sticker information that the vehicle complies with relevant FMVSS or 2) manufacturer's certified
statement that the buses will not be subject to FMVSS regulations.

Lobbying

Construction/Architectural and Engineering/Acquisition of Rolling Stock/Professional Service Contract/Operational
Service Contract/Turnkey contracts over $150,000

Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment, 31 U.S.C. 1352, as amended by the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995, P.L. 104-
65 [to be codified at 2 U.S.C. § 1601, et seq.] - Contractors who apply or bid for an award of $150,000 or more
shall file the certification required by 49 CFR part 20, "New Restrictions on Lobbying." Each tier certifies to the tier
above that it will not and has not used Federal appropriated funds to pay any person or organization for



influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, officer or
employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with obtaining any Federal
contract, grant or any other award covered by 31 U.S.C. 1352. Each tier shall also disclose the name of any
registrant under the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995 who has made lobbying contacts on its behalf with non-
Federal funds with respect to that Federal contract, grant or award covered by 31 U.S.C. 1352. Such disclosures
are forwarded from tier to tier up to the recipient.

Access to Records and Reports

Applicability — As shown below. These requirements do not apply to micro-purchases ($3,500 or less, except for
construction contracts over $2,000)

The following access to records requirements apply to this Contract:

1. Where the purchaser is not a State but a local government and is an FTA recipient or a subgrantee of FTA
recipient in accordance with 49 CFR 18.36(i), contractor shall provide the purchaser, the FTA, the US Comptroller
General or their authorized representatives access to any books, documents, papers and contractor records
which are pertinent to this contract for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.
Contractor shall also, pursuant to 49 CFR 633.17, provide authorized FTA representatives, including any PMO
contractor, access to contractor's records and construction sites pertaining to a capital project, defined at 49 USC
5302(a)1, which is receiving FTA assistance through the programs described at 49 USC 5307, 5309 or 5311.

2. Where the purchaser is a State and is an FTA recipient or a subgrantee of FTA recipient in accordance with 49
CFR 633.17, contractor shall provide the purchaser, authorized FTA representatives, including any PMO
Contractor, access to contractor's records and construction sites pertaining to a capital project, defined at 49 USC
5302(a)1, which receives FTA assistance through the programs described at 49 USC 5307, 5309 or 5311. By
definition, a capital project excludes contracts of less than the simpilified acquisition threshold currently set at
$150,000.

3. Where the purchaser enters into a negotiated contract for other than a smail purchase or under the simplified
acquisition threshold and is an institution of higher education, a hospital or other non-profit organization and is an
FTA recipient or a subgrantee of FTA recipient in accordance with 49 CFR 19.48, contractor shall provide the
purchaser, the FTA, the US Comptroller General or their authorized representatives, access to any books,
documents, papers and record of the contractor which are directly pertinent to this contract for the purposes of
making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.

4. Where a purchaser which is an FTA recipient or a subgrantee of FTA recipient in accordance with 43 USC
5325(a) enters into a contract for a capital project or improvement (defined at 49 USC 5302(a)1) through other
than competitive bidding, contractor shall make available records related to the contract to the purchaser, the
Secretary of USDOT and the US Comptroller General or any authorized officer or employee of any of them for the
purposes of conducting an audit and inspection.

5. Contractor shall permit any of the foregoing parties to reproduce by any means whatsoever or to copy
excerpts and transcriptions as reasonably needed.

6. Contractor shall maintain all books, records, accounts and reports required under this contract for a period of
not less than three (3) years after the date of termination or expiration of this contract, except in the event of
litigation or settlement of claims arising from the performance of this contract, in which case contractor agrees to
maintain same until the recipient, FTA Administrator, US Comptroller General, or any of their authorized
representatives, have disposed of all such litigation, appeals, claims or exceptions related thereto. Re: 49 CFR
18.39()(11).

FTA does not require the inclusion of these requirements in subcontracts.



Federal Changes

All Contracts except micro-purchases ($3,500 or less, except for construction contracts over $2,000)

Contractor shall comply with alf applicable FTA regulations, policies, procedures and directives, including without
limitation those listed directly or by reference in the Master Agreement between the purchaser and FTA, as they

may be amended or promulgated from time to time during the term of the contract. Contractor's failure to comply
shall constitute a material breach of the contract.

Clean Air

Applicability — All contracts over $150,000.

1) Contractor shall comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations pursuant to the Clean Air Act, 42
USC 7401 et seq. Contractor shali report each violation to the recipient and understands and agrees that the
recipient will, in turn, report each violation as required to FTA and the appropriate EPA Regional Office.

2) Contractor shall include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding $150,000 financed in whole or in
part with FTA assistance.

Contract Work Hours & Safety Standards Act
Applicability — Contracts over $150,000

(1) Overtime requirements - No contractor or subcontractor contracting for any part of the contract work which
may require or involve the employment of laborers or mechanics shall require or permit any such laborer or
mechanic in any workweek in which he or she is employed on such work to work in excess of 40 hours in such
workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less than one and one-half times
the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of 40 hours in such workweek.

(2) Violation; liability for unpaid wages; liquidated damages - In the event of any violation of the clause set forth in
para. (1) of this section, contractor and any subcontractor responsible therefore shall be liable for the unpaid
wages. In addition, such contractor and subcontractor shall be liable for liquidated damages. Such liquidated
damages shall be computed with respect to each individual laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and guards,
employed in violation of the clause set forth in para. (1) of this section, in the sum of $10 for each calendar day on
which such individual was required or permitted to work in excess of the standard workweek of 40 hours without
payment of the overtime wages required by the clause set forth in para. (1) of this section.

(3) Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages - the recipient shall upon its own action or upon written
request of USDOL withhold or cauee to be withheld, from any moneys payable on account of work performed by
contractor or subcontractor under any such contract or any other Federal contract with the same prime contractor,
or any other federally-assisted contract subject to the Contract Work Hours & Safety Standards Act, which is held
by the same prime contractor, such sums as may be determined to be necessary to satisfy any liabilities of such
contractor or subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as provided in the clause set forth in para.
(2) of this section.

(4) Subcontracts - Contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses set forth in this section
and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. Prime
contractor shall be responsibie for compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with the clauses
set forth in this section.

No Government Obligation to Third Parties
Applicability — All contracts except micro-purchases ($3,500 or less, except for construction contracts over $2,000)

(1) The recipient and contractor acknowledge and agree that, notwithstanding any concurrence by the US
Government in or approval of the solicitation or award of the underlying contract, absent the express written
consent by the US Government, the US Government is not a party to this contract and shall not be subject to any



obligations or liabilities to the recipient, the contractor, or any other party (whether or not a party to that contract)
pertaining to any matter resuiting from the underlying contract.

(2) Contractor agrees to include the above clause in each subcontract financed in whole or in part with FTA
assistance. It is further agreed that the clause shall not be modified, except to identify the subcontractor who will
be subject to its provisions.

Program Fraud and False or Fraudulent Statements or Related Acts

Applicability — All contracts except micro-purchases ($3,500 or less, except for construction contracts over $2,000)
(1) Contractor acknowledges that the provisions of the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986, as amended,
31 USC 3801 et seq. and USDOT regulations, "Program Fraud Civil Remedies,"” 49 CFR 31, apply to its actions
pertaining to this project. Upon execution of the underlying contract, contractor certifies or affirms the truthfulness
and accuracy of any statement it has made, it makes, it may make, or causes to be made, pertaining to the
underlying contract or FTA assisted project for which this contract work is being performed. In addition to other
penalties that may be applicable, contractor further acknowledges that if it makes, or causes to be made, a faise,
fictitious, or fraudulent claim, statement, submittal, or certification, the US Government reserves the right to
impose the penalties of the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act (1986) on contractor to the extent the US
Government deems appropriate.

(2) if contractor makes, or causes to be made, a false, fictitious, or fraudulent claim, statement, submittal, or
certification to the US Government under a contract connected with a project that is financed in whole or in part
with FTA assistance under the authority of 49 USC 5307, the Government reserves the right to impose the
penaities of 18 USC 1001 and 49 USC 5307(n)(1) on contractor, to the extent the US Government deems
appropriate.

(3) Contractor shall include the above two clauses in each subcontract financed in whole or in part with FTA
assistance. The clauses shall not be modified, except to identify the subcontractor who will be subject to the
provisions.

Termination
Applicability — All Contracts over $10,000, except contracts with nonprofit organizations and institutions of higher
learning, where the threshold is $150,000

a. Termination for Convenience (General Provision) the recipient may terminate this contract, in whole or in part,
at any time by written notice to contractor when it is in the recipient's best interest. Contractor shall be paid its
costs, including eontract close-out costs, and profit on wark performed up to the time of termination. Contractor
shall promptly submit its termination claim to the recipient. If contractor is in possession of any of the recipient’s
property, contractor shall account for same, and dispose of it as the recipient directs.

b. Termination for Default [Breach or Cause] (General Provision} If contractor does not deliver items in
accordance with the contract delivery schedule, or, if the contract is for services, and contractor fails to perform in
the manner called for in the contract, or if contractor fails to comply with any other provisions of the contract, the
recipient may terminate this contract for default. Termination shall be effected by serving a notice of termination to
contractor setting forth the manner in which contractor is in default. Contractor shall only be paid the contract price
for supplies delivered and accepted, or for services performed in accordance with the manner of performance set
forth in the contract.

If it is later determined by the recipient that contractor had an excusable reason for not performing, such as a
strike, fire, or flood, events which are not the fault of or are beyond the control of contractor, the recipient, after
setting up a new delivery or performance schedule, may allow contractor to continue work, or treat the termination
as a termination for convenience.

c. Opportunity to Cure (General Provision) the recipient in its sole discretion may, in the case of a termination for
breach or default, aliow contractor an appropriately short period of time in which to cure the defect. In such case,



the notice of termination shall state the time period in which cure is permitted and other appropriate conditions

If contractor fails to remedy to the recipient's satisfaction the breach or default or any of the terms, covenants, or
conditions of this Contract within ten (10) days after receipt by contractor or written notice from the recipient
setting forth the nature of said breach or defauit, the recipient shall have the right to terminate the Contract without
any further obligation to contractor. Any such termination for default shall not in any way operate to preclude the
recipient from also pursuing all available remedies against contractor and its sureties for said breach or default.

d. Waiver of Remedies for any Breach In the event that the recipient elects to waive its remedies for any breach
by contractor of any covenant, term or condition of this Contract, such waiver by the recipient shall not limit its
remedies for any succeeding breach of that or of any other term, covenant, or condition of this Contract.

e. Termination for Convenience (Professional or Transit Service Contracts) the recipient, by written notice, may
terminate this contract, in whole or in part, when it is in the recipient's interest. If the contract is terminated, the
recipient shall be liable only for payment under the payment provisions of this contract for services rendered
before the effective date of termination.

f. Termination for Default (Supplies and Service) If contractor fails to deliver supplies or to perform the services
within the time specified in this contract or any extension or if the contractor fails to comply with any other
provisions of this contract, the recipient may terminate this contract for default. The recipient shall terminate by
delivering to contractor a notice of termination specifying the nature of default. Contractor shall only be paid the
contract price for supplies delivered and accepted, or services performed in accordance with the manner or
performance set forth in this contract.

if, after termination for failure to fulfill contract obligations, it is determined that contractor was not in default, the
rights and obligations of the parties shali be the same as if termination had been issued for the recipient’s
convenience.

g. Termination for Default (Transportation Services) If contractor fails to pick up the commodities or to perform the
services, including delivery services, within the time specified in this contract or any extension or if contractor fails
to comply with any other provisions of this contract, the recipient may terminate this contract for default. The
recipient shall terminate by delivering to contractor a notice of termination specifying the nature of default.
Contractor shall only be paid the contract price for services performed in accordance with the manner of
performance set forth in this contract.

If this contract is terminated while contractor has possession of the recipient goods, contractor shall, as directed
by the recipient, protect and preserve the goods until surrendered to the recipient or its agent. Contractor and the
recipient shall agree on payment for the preservation and protection of goods. Failure to agree on an amount shall
be resolved under the Dispute clause. If, after termination for failure to fulfill contract obligations, it is determined
that contractor was not in defauit, the rights and obligations of the parties shall be the same as if termination had
been issued for the recipient’s convenience.

h. Termination for Default (Construction) If contractor refuses or fails to prosecute the work or any separable part,
with the diligence that will insure its completion within the time specified, or any extension, or fails to complete the
work within this time, or if contractor fails to comply with any other provisions of this contract, the recipient may
terminate this contract for default. the recipient shall terminate by delivering to contractor a notice of termination
specifying the nature of default. In this event, the recipient may take over the work and compete it by contract or
otherwise, and may take possession of and use any materials, appliances, and plant on the work site necessary
for completing the work. Contractor and its sureties shall be liable for any damage to the recipient resulting from
contractor's refusal or failure to complete the work within specified time, whether or not contractor's right to
proceed with the work is terminated. This liability includes any increased costs incurred by the recipient in
completing the work.

Contractor's right to proceed shall not be terminated nor shall contractor be charged with damages under this
clause if:



1. Delay in completing the work arises from unforeseeable causes beyond the control and without the fault or
negligence of contractor. Examples of such causes include: acts of God, acts of the recipient, acts of another
contractor in the performance of a contract with the recipient, epidemics, quarantine restrictions, strikes, freight
embargoes; and

2. Contractor, within 10 days from the beginning of any delay, notifies the recipient in writing of the causes of
delay. If in the recipient’s judgment, delay is excusable, the time for completing the work shali be extended. The
recipient’s judgment shall be final and conclusive on the parties, but subject to appeal under the Disputes clauses.

If, after termination of contractor's right to proceed, it is determined that contractor was not in default, or that the
delay was excusable, the rights and obligations of the parties will be the same as if termination had been issued
for the recipient’'s convenience.

i. Termination for Convenience or Default (Architect & Engineering) the recipient may terminate this contract in
whole or in part, for the recipient's convenience or because of contractor's failure to fulfill contract obligations. The
recipient shall terminate by delivering to contractor a notice of termination specifying the nature, extent, and
effective date of termination. Upon receipt of the notice, contractor shall (1) immediately discontinue all services
affected (unless the notice directs otherwise), and (2) deliver to the recipient all data, drawings, specifications,
reports, estimates, summaries, and other information and materials accumuiated in performing this contract,
whether completed or in process. [f termination is for the recipient’'s convenience, it shall make an equitable
adjustment in the contract price but shall allow no anticipated profit on unperformed services. If termination is for
contractor’s failure to fulfiil contract obligations, the recipient may compiete the work by contact or otherwise and
contractor shall be liable for any additional cost incurred by the recipient.

if, after termination for failure to fulfill contract obligations, it is determined that contractor was not in default, the
rights and obligations of the parties shall be the same as if termination had been issued for the recipient’s
convenience.

j. Termination for Convenience or Default (Cost-Type Contracts) the recipient may terminate this contract, or any
portion of it, by serving a notice or termination on contractor. The notice shall state whether termination is for
convenience of the recipient or for default of contractor. If termination is for default, the notice shall state the
manner in which contractor has failed to perform the requirements of the contract. Contractor shall account for any
property in its possession paid for from funds received from the recipient, or property supplied to contractor by the
recipient. If termination is for default, the recipient may fix the fee, if the contract provides for a fee, to be paid to
contractor in proportion to the value, if any, of work performed up to the time of termination. Contractor shall
promptly submit its termination claim to the recipient and the parties shall negotiate the termination settlement to
be paid to contractor. If termination is for the recipient's convenience, contractor shall be paid its contract close-
out costs, and a fee, if the contract provided for payment of a fee, in proportion to the work performed up to the
time of termination.

If, after serving a notice of termination for default, the recipient determines that contractor has an excusable
reason for not performing, such as strike, fire, flood, events which are not the fault of and are beyond the control
of contractor, the recipient, after setting up a new work schedule, may allow contractor to continue work, or treat
the termination as a termination for convenience.

Government Wide Debarment and Suspension (Non Procurement)

The Recipient agrees to the following: (1) It will comply with the requirements of 2 C.F.R. part 180, subpart C, as
adopted and supplemented by U.S. DOT regulations at 2 C.F.R. part 1200, which include the following: (a) It will
not enter into any arrangement to participate in the development or implementation of the Project with any Third
Party Participant that is debarred or suspended except as authorized by: 1 U.S. DOT regulations,
“Nonprocurement Suspension and Debarment,” 2 C.F.R. part 1200, 2 U.S. OMB, “Guidelines to Agencies on
Governmentwide Debarment and Suspension (Nonprocurement),” 2 C.F.R. part 180, including any amendments
thereto, and 3 Executive Orders Nos. 12549 and 12689, “Debarment and Suspension,” 31 U.S.C. § 6101 note, (b)



it will review the U.S. GSA “System for Award Management,” http://https. www.sam.gov,.proxy1.semalt.design if
required by U.S. DOT regulations, 2 C.F.R. part 1200, and (c} It will include, and require each of its Third Party
Participants to include, a similar provision in each lower tier covered transaction, ensuring that each lower tier
Third Party Participant: 1 Will comply with Federal debarment and suspension requirements, and 2 Reviews the
“System for Award Management” at http://https.www.sam.gov,.proxy1.semalt.design if necessary to comply with
U.S. DOT regulations, 2 C.F.R. part 1200, and (2) if the Recipient suspends, debars, or takes any similar action
against a Third Party Participant or individual, the Recipient will provide immediate written notice te the: (a) FTA
Regional Counsel for the Region in which the Recipient is located or implements the Project, (b) FTA Project
Manager if the Project is administered by an FTA Headquarters Office, or (c) FTA Chief Counsel,

Contracts Involving Federal Privacy Act Requirements

When a grantee maintains files on drug and alcohol enforcement activities for FTA, and those files are organized
so that information could be retrieved by personal identifier, the Privacy Act requirements apply to all contracts
except micro-purchases ($3,500 or less, except for construction contracts over $2,000)

The following requirements apply to the Contractor and its employees that administer any system of records on
behalf of the Federal Government under any contract:

(1) The Contractor agrees to comply with, and assures the compliance of its employees with, the information
restrictions and other applicable requirements of the Privacy Act of 1974, 5 U.S.C. § 552a. Among other things,
the Contractor agrees to obtain the express consent of the Federal Government before the Contractor or its
employees operate a system of records on behalf of the Federal Government. The Contractor understands that
the requirements of the Privacy Act, including the civil and criminal penalties for violation of that Act, apply to
those individuals involved, and that failure to comply with the terms of the Privacy Act may result in termination of
the underlying contract.

(2) The Contractor also agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract to administer any system of
records on behalf of the Federal Government financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by
FTA.

Civil Rights Requirements
Applicability — All contracts except micro-purchases ($3,500 or less, except for construction contracts over $2,000)

The following requirements apply to the underlying contract:

The Recipient understands and agrees that it must comply with applicable Federal civil rights laws and
regulations, and follow applicable Federal guidance, except as the Federal Government determines otherwise in
writing. Therefore, unless a Recipient or Program, including an Indian Tribe or the Tribal Transit Program, is
specifically exempted from a civil rights statute, FTA requires compliance with that civil rights statute, including
compliance with equity in service:

a. Nondiscrimination in Federal Public Transportation Programs. The Recipient agrees to, and assures that each
Third Party Participant will, comply with Federal transit law, 49 U.S.C. § 5332 (FTA's “Nondiscrimination” statute):
(1) FTA’s “Nondiscrimination” statute prohibits discrimination on the basis of: (a) Race, (b) Color, (c) Religion, (d)
National origin, (e) Sex, (f) Disability, (g) Age, or (h) Gender identity and (2) The FTA “Nondiscrimination”
statute’s prohibition against discrimination includes: (a) Exclusion from participation, (b) Denial of program
benefits, or (c) Discrimination, including discrimination in employment or business opportunity, (3) Except as FTA
determines otherwise in writing: (@) General. Follow: 1 The most recent edition of FTA Circular 4702.1, “Title VI
Requirements and Guidelines for Federal Transit Administration Recipients,” to the extent consistent with
applicable Federal laws, regulations, and guidance, and

2 Other applicable Federal guidance that may be issued, but (b) Exception for the Tribal Transit Program. FTA



does not require an Indian Tribe to comply with FTA program-specific guidelines for Title VI when administering its
projects funded under the Tribal Transit Program,

b. Nondiscrimination — Title V! of the Civil Rights Act. The Recipient agrees to, and assures that each Third Party
Participant will: (1) Prohibit discrimination based on: (a) Race, (b) Color, or (c) National origin, (2) Comply with: (a)
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq., (b) U.S. DOT regulations,
“Nondiscrimination in Federally-Assisted Programs of the Department of Transportation — Effectuation of Title Vi
of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 49 C.F.R. part 21, and (c) Federal transit law, specifically 43 U.S.C. § 5332, as
stated in the preceding section a, and (3) Except as FTA determines otherwise in writing, follow: (@) The most
recent edition of FTA Circular 4702.1, “Title VI and Title Vi-Dependent Guidelines for Federal Transit
Administration Recipients,” to the extent consistent with applicable Federal laws, regulations, and guidance. (b)
U.S. DOJ, “Guidelines for the enforcement of Title VI, Civil Rights Act of 1964,” 28 C.F.R. § 50.3, and (c) Other
applicable Federal guidance that may be issued,

c. Equal Employment Opportunity. (1) Federal Requirements and Guidance. The Recipient agrees to, and
assures that each Third Party Participant will, prohibit discrimination on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, or
national origin, and: (a) Comply with Title VIl of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 2000e et
seq., (b) Facilitate compliance with Executive Order No. 11246, “Equal Employment Opportunity,” as amended by
Executive Order No. 11375, “Amending Executive Order No. 11246, Relating to Equal Employment Opportunity,”
42 U.S.C. § 2000e note, (c) Comply with Federal transit law, specifically 49 U.S.C. § 5332, as stated in section a,
and (d) Comply with other applicable EEO laws and regulations, as provided in Federal guidance, including faws
and regulations prohibiting discrimination on the basis of disability, except as the Federal Government determines
otherwise in writing, (2) General. The Recipient agrees to: (a) Ensure that applicants for employment are
employed and employees are treated during employment without discrimination on the basis of their: 1 Race, 2
Color, 3 Religion, 4 Sex, 5 Disability, 6 Age, or 7 National origin, (b) Take affirmative action that includes, but is
not limited to: 1 Recruitment advertising, 2 Recruitment, 3 Employment, 4 Rates of pay, 5 Other forms of
compensation, 6 Selection for training, including apprenticeship, 7 Upgrading, 8 Transfers, 9 Demotions, 10
Layoffs, and 11 Terminations, but (b) Indian Tribe. Title V11 of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, exempts
Indian Tribes under the definition of "Employer”.

(3) Equal Employment Opportunity Requirements for Construction Activities. In addition to the foregoing, when
undertaking “construction” as recognized by the U.S. Department of Labor (U.S. DOL), the Recipient agrees to
comply, and assures the compliance of each Third Party Participant, with: (a) U.S. DOL regulations, “Office of
Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal Employment Opportunity, Department of Labor,” 41 C.F.R.
chapter 60, and (b) Executive Order No. 11246, “Equal Employment Opportunity,” as amended by Executive
Order No. 11375, “Amending Executive Order No. 11246, Relating to Equal Employment Opportunity,” 42 U.S.C.
§ 2000e note,

d. Disadvantaged Business Enterprise. To the extent authorized by applicable Federal law, the Recipient agrees
to facilitate, and assures that each Third Party Participant will facilitate, participation by small business concerns
owned and controlled by socially and economically disadvantaged individuals, also referred to as “Disadvantaged
Business Enterprises” (DBEs), in the Project as follows: 1) Requirements. The Recipient agrees to comply with:
(a) Section 1101(b) of MAP-21, 23 U.S.C. § 101 note, (b) U.S. DOT regulations, “Participation by Disadvantaged
Business Enterprises in Department of Transportation Financial Assistance Programs,” 49 C.F.R. part 26, and (c)
Federal transit law, specifically 49 U.S.C. § 5332, as stated in section a, (2) Assurance. As required by 49 C.F.R.
§ 26.13(a), (b) DBE Program Requirements. Recipients receiving planning, capital and/or operating assistance
that will award prime third party contracts exceeding $250,000 in a Federal fiscal year must: 1 Have a DBE
program meeting the requirements of 43 C.F.R. part 26, 2 Impiement a DBE program approved by FTA, and 3
Establish an annual DBE patrticipation goal, (¢) Special Requirements for a Transit Vehicle Manufacturer. The
Recipient understands and agrees that each transit vehicle manufacturer, as a condition of being authorized to bid
or propose on FTA-assisted transit vehicle procurements, must certify that it has complied with the requirements
of 49 C.F.R. part 26, (d) the Recipient provides assurance that: The Recipient shail not discriminate on the basis



of race, color, national origin, or sex in the award and performance of any DOT-assisted contract or in the
administration of its DBE program or the requirements of 49 C.F.R. part 26. The Recipient shall take all necessary
and reasonable steps under 49 C.F.R. part 26 to ensure nondiscrimination in the award and administration of
DOT-assisted contracts. The Recipient's DBE program, as required by 49 C.F.R. part 26 and as approved by
DOT, is incorporated by reference in this agreement. Implementation of this program is a legal obligation and
failure to carry out its terms shall be treated as a violation of this agreement. Upon notification to the Recipient of
its failure to carry out its approved program, the Department may impose sanctions as provided for under 49
C.F.R. part 26 and may, in appropriate cases, refer the matter for enforcement under 18 U.S.C. § 1001 and/or the
Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986, 31 U.S.C. § 3801 et seq.,

(2) Exception for the Tribal Transit Program. FTA exempts [ndian tribes from the Disadvantaged Business
Enterprise regulations at 49 C.F.R. part 26 under MAP-21 and previous legislation,

e. Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex. The Recipient agrees to comply with Federal prohibitions against
discrimination on the basis of sex, including: (1) Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, 20
U.S.C. § 1681 et seq., (2) U.S. DOT regulations, “Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex in Education Programs or
Activities Receiving Federal Financial Assistance,” 43 C.F.R. part 25, and (3) Federal transit law, specifically 49
U.S.C. § 5332, as stated in section a, '

f. Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Age. The Recipient agrees to comply with Federal prohibitions against
discrimination on the basis of age, including: (1) The Age Discrimination in Employment Act (ADEA), 29 U.S.C. §§
621 — 634, which prohibits discrimination on the basis of age, (2) U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity
Commission (U.S. EEOC) regulations, “Age Discrimination in Employment Act,” 29 C.F.R. part 1625, which
implements the ADEA, (3) The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 6101 et seq., which
prohibits discrimination against individuals on the basis of age in the administration of programs or activities
receiving Federal funds, (4) U.S. Health and Human Services regulations, “Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Age
in Programs or Activities Receiving Federal Financial Assistance,” 45 C.F.R. part 90, which implements the Age
Discrimination Act of 1975, and (5) Federal transit law, specifically 49 U.S.C. § 5332, as stated in section a,

g. Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Disability. The Recipient agrees to comply with the following Federal!
prohibitions pertaining to discrimination against seniors or individuals with disabilities: (1) Federa! laws, including:
(a) Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, 29 U.S.C. § 794, which prohibits discrimination on
the basis of disability in the administration of federally funded programs or activities, (b) The Americans with
Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA), as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 12101 et seq., which requires that accessible facilities
and services be made available to individuals with disabilities, 1 General. Titles |, il, and lli of the ADA apply to
FTA Recipients, but 2 Indian Tribes. While Titles Il and Il of the ADA apply to Indian Tribes, Title | of the ADA
exempts Indian Tribes from the definition of “employer,” (c) The Architecturai Barriers Act of 1968, as amended,
42 U.S.C. § 4151 et seq., which requires that buildings and public accommodations be accessible to individuals
with disabilities, (d) Federal transit law, specifically 49 U.S.C. § 5332, which now includes disability as a prohibited
basis for discrimination, and (e) Other applicable laws and amendments pertaining to access for elderly
individuals or individuals with disabilities, (2) Federal regulations, including: (a) U.S. DOT regulations,
“Transportation Services for Individuals with Disabilities (ADA),” 49 C.F.R. part 37, (b) U.S. DOT regulations,
“Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Disability in Programs and Activities Receiving or Benefiting from Federal
Financial Assistance,” 49 C.F.R. part 27, (c) U.S. DOT regulations, “Transportation for Individuals with Disabilities:
Passenger Vessels,” 49 C.F.R. part 39, (d) Joint U.S. Architectural and Transportation Barriers Compliance Board
(U.S. ATBCB) and U.S. DOT regulations, “Americans With Disabilities (ADA) Accessibility Specifications for
Transportation Vehicles,” 36 C.F.R. part 1192 and 49 C.F.R. part 38, (e) U.S. DOJ regulations, “Nondiscrimination
on the Basis of Disability in State and Local Government Services,” 28 C.F.R. part 35, (f) U.S. DOJ regutations,
“Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Disability by Public Accommodations and in Commercial Facilities,” 28 C.F.R.
part 36, (g) U.S. EEOC, “Regulations to Implement the Equal Employment Provisions of the Americans with
Disabilities Act,” 29 C.F.R. part 1630, (h) U.S. Federal Communications Commission regulations,
“Telecommunications Relay Services and Related Customer Premises Equipment for Persons with Disabilities,”



47 C.F.R. part 64, Subpart F, (i) U.S. ATBCB regulations, “Electronic and Information Technology Accessibility
Standards,” 36 C.F.R. part 1194, and (j) FTA regulations, “Transportation for Elderly and Handicapped Persons,”
49 C.F.R. part 609, and (3) Other applicable Federal civil rights and nondiscrimination guidance,

h. Drug or Alcohol Abuse - Confidentiality and Other Civil Rights Protections. The Recipient agrees to comply with
the confidentiality and civil rights protections of: (1) The Drug Abuse Office and Treatment Act of 1972, as
amended, 21 U.S.C. § 1101 et seq., (2) The Comprehensive Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism Prevention,
Treatment and Rehabilitation Act of 1970, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 4541 et seq., and (3) The Public Health
Service Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 290dd — 290dd-2,

i. Access to Services for People with Limited English Proficiency. Except as the Federal Government determines
otherwise in writing, the Recipient agrees to promote accessibility of public transportation services to péople
whose understanding of English is limited by foliowing: 1) Executive Order No. 13166, “Improving Access to
Services for Persons with Limited English Proficiency,” August 11, 2000, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d-1 note, and (2) U.S.
DOT Notice, “DOT Policy Guidance Concerning Recipients’ Responsibilities to Limited English Proficiency (LEP)
Persons,” 70 Fed. Reg. 74087, December 14, 2005,

j. Other Nondiscrimination Laws. Except as the Federal Government determines otherwise in writing, the
Recipient agrees to: (1) Comply with other applicable Federal nondiscrimination laws and regulations, and (2)
Follow Federal guidance prohibiting discrimination.

k. Remedies. Remedies for failure to comply with applicable Federal Civil Rights laws and Federal regulations
may be enforced as provided in those Federal laws or Federal regulations.

Breaches and Dispute Resolution

All contracts over $150,000

Dispules atising in lhe petformance ol (his conlracl which are nol resolved by agreement of he patlies shall be
decided in writing by the recipient’'s authorized representative. This decision shall be final and conclusive unless
within ten (10) days from the date of receipt of its copy, contractor mails or otherwise furnishes a written appeal to
the recipient's CEO. In connection with such appeal, contractor shall be afforded an opportunity to be heard and
to offer evidence in support of its position. The decision of the recipient's CEO shall be binding upon contractor
and contractor shall abide by the decision. FTA has a vested interest in the settlement of any violation of Federal
law including the the False Claims Act, 31 U.S.C. § 3729.

Performance During Dispute - Unless otherwise directed by the recipient, contractor shali continue performance
under this contract while matters in dispute are being resolved.

Claims for Damages - Should either party to the contract suffer injury or damage to person or property because of
any act or omission of the party or of any of his employees, agents or others for whose acts he is legally liable, a
claim for damages therefore shall be made in writing to such other party within ten days after the first observance
of such injury or damage.

Remedies - Unless this contract provides otherwise, all claims, counterclaims, disputes and other matters in
question between the recipient and contractor arising out of or relating to this agreement or its breach will be
decided by arbitration if the parties mutually agree, or in a court of competent jurisdiction within the residing State.

Rights and Remedies - Duties and obligations imposed by the contract documents and the rights and remedies
available thereunder shall be in addition to and not a limitation of any duties, obligations, rights and remedies
otherwise imposed or available by law. No action or failure to act by the recipient or contractor shall constitute a
waiver of any right or duty afforded any of them under the contract, nor shall any such action or failure to act
constitute an approval of or acquiescence in any breach thereunder, except as may be specifically agreed in
writing.



Disadvantaged Business Enterprise
Contracts over $3,500 awarded on the basis of a bid or proposal offering to use DBEs

a. This contract is subject to the requirements of Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 26, Participation by
Disadvantaged Business Enterprises in Department of Transportation Financial Assistance Programs. The
national goal for participation of Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE) is 10%. The recipient's overall goal
for DBE participation is listed elsewhere. If a separate contract goal for DBE participation has been established for
this procurement, it is listed elsewhere.

b. The contractor shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or sex in the
performance of this contract. The contractor shall carry out applicable requirements of 43 CFR Part 26 in the
award and administration of this contract. Failure by the contractor to carry out these requirements is a material
breach of this contract, which may result in the termination of this contract or such other remedy as the municipal
corporation deems appropriate. Each subcontract the contractor signs with a subcontractor must include the
assurance in this paragraph (see 49 CFR 26.13(b)).

c. If a separate contract goal has been established, Bidders/offerors are required to document sufficient DBE
participation to meet these goals or, alternatively, document adequate good faith efforts to do so, as provided for
in 49 CFR 26.53.

d. If no separate contract goal has been established, the successful bidder/offeror will be required to report its
DBE participation obtained through race-neutral means throughout the period of performance.

e. The contractor is required to pay its subcontractors performing work related to this contract for satisfactory
performance of that work no later than 30 days after the contractor’s receipt of payment for that work from the
recipient. in addition, lhe conlraclor may nol hold relainage fiom ils subconlractors or must return any retainage
payments to those subcontractors within 30 days after the subcontractor's work related to this contract is
satisfactorily completed or must return any retainage payments to those subcontractors within 30 days after
incremental acceptance of the subcontractor’s work by the recipient and contractor’s receipt of the partial
retainage payment related to the subcontractor’s work.

f. The contractor must promptly notify the recipient whenever a DBE subcontractor performing work related to this
contract is terminated or fails to complete its work, and must make good faith efforts to engage another DBE
subcontractor to perform at least the same amount of work. The contractor may not terminate any DBE
subcontractor and perform that work through its own forces or those of an affiliate without prior written consent of

the recipient.

Prompt payment
Applicability — Ali contracts except micro-purchases ($3,500 or less, except for construction contracts over $2,000)

The prime contractor agrees to pay each subcontractor under this prime contract for satisfactory performance of
its contract no later than 30 days from the receipt of each payment the prime contract receives from the Recipient.
The prime contractor agrees further to return retainage payments to each subcontractor within 30 days after the
subcontractors work is satisfactorily completed. Any delay or postponement of payment from the above
referenced time frame may occur only for good cause following written approval of the Recipient. This clause
applies to both DBE and non-DBE subcontracts.

Incorporation of Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Terms
All contracts except micro-purchases ($3,500 or less, except for construction contracts over $2,000)



The preceding provisions include, in part, certain Standard Terms & Conditions required by USDOT, whether or
not expressly stated in the preceding contract provisions. All USDOT-required contractual provisions, as stated in
FTA Circular 4220.1F, are hereby incorporated by reference. Anything to the contrary herein notwithstanding, all
FTA mandated terms shall be deemed to control in the event of a conflict with other provisions contained in this
Agreement. The contractor shall not perform any act, fail to perform any act, or refuse to comply with any request
that would cause the recipient to be in violation of FTA terms and conditions.

Other Federal Requirements
The following requirements are not federal clauses.

Full and Open Competition
In accordance with 49 U.S.C. § 5325(a) all procurement transactions shall be conducted in a manner that

provides full and open competition.

Prohibition Against Exclusionary or Discriminatory Specifications

Apart from inconsistent requirements imposed by Federal statute or regulations, the contractor shall comply with
the requirements of 49 USC 5323(h)(2) by refraining from using any FTA assistance to support procurements
using exclusionary or discriminatory specifications.

Conformance with ITS National Architecture

Contractor shail conform, to the extent appilicable, to the National Intelligent Transportation Standards architecture
as required by SAFETEA-LU Section 5307(c), 23 U.S.C. Section 512 and as amended by MAP-21 23 U.S.C. §
517(d), note and follow the provisions of FTA Notice, “FTA National Architecture Policy on Transit Projects,” 66
Fed. Reg.1455 etseq., January 8, 2001, and any other implementing directives FTA may issue at a later date,
except to the extent ' TA determines otherwise in writing.

Access Requirements for Persons with Disabilities

Contractor shall comply with 49 USC 5301(d), stating Federal policy that the elderly and persons with disabilities
have the same rights as other persons to use mass transportation services and facilities and that special efforts
shall be made in planning and designing those services and facilities to implement that policy. Contractor shall
also comply with all applicable requirements of Sec. 504 of the Rehabilitation Act (1973), as amended, 29 USC
794, which prohibits discrimination on the basis of handicaps, and the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990
(ADA), as amended, 42 USC 12101 et seq., which requires that accessible facilities and services be made
available to persons with disabilities, including any subsequent amendments thereto.

Notification of Federa! Participation

To the extent required by law, in the announcement of any third party contract award for goods and services
(including construction services) having an aggregate value of $500,000 or more, contractor shall specify the
amount of Federal assistance to be used in financing that acquisition of goods and services and to express that
amount of Federal assistance as a percentage of the total cost of the third party contract.

interest of Members or Delegates to Congress
No members of, or delegates to, the US Congress shall be admitted to any share or part of this contract nor to any

benefit arising therefrom.

Ineligible Contractors and Subcontractors

Any name appearing upon the Comptroller General's list of ineligible contractors for federally-assisted contracts
shall be ineligible to act as a subcontractor for contractor pursuant to this contract. If contractor is on the
Comptroller General’s list of ineligible contractors for federally financed or assisted construction, the recipient shalt
cancel, terminate or suspend this contract.



Other Contract Requirements

To the extent not inconsistent with the foregoing Federal requirements, this contract shall also include those
provisions attached hereto, and shall comply with the recipient's Procurement Guidelines, available upon request
from the recipient.

Compliance with Federal Regulations

Any contract entered pursuant to this solicitation shall contain the following provisions: All USDOT-required
contractual provisions, as set forth in FTA Circular 4220.1F, are incorporated by reference. Anything to the
contrary herein notwithstanding, FTA mandated terms shall control in the event of a conflict with other provisions
contained in this Agreement. Contractor shall not perform any act, fail to perform any act, or refuse to comply with
any grantee request that would cause the recipient to be in violation of FTA terms and conditions. Contractor shall
comply with all applicable FTA regulations, policies, procedures and directives, including, without fimitation, those
listed directly or incorporated by reference in the Master Agreement between the recipient and FTA, as may be
amended or promulgated from time to time during the term of this contract. Contractor’s failure to so comply shall
constitute a material breach of this contract.

Real Property

Any contract entered into shall contain the following provisions: Contractor shall at all times comply with all
applicable statutes and USDOT regulations, policies, procedures and directives governing the acquisition, use
and disposal of real property, including, but not limited to, 49 CFR 18.31-18.34, 49 CFR 19.30-19.37, 49 CFR Part
24,49 CFR 5326 as amended by FAST Act, 49 CFR part 18 or 19, 49 USC 5334, applicable FTA Circular 5010,
and FTA Master Agreement, ag they may be amended or promulgated during the term of this contract.
Contractor’s failure to so comply shall constitute a material breach of this contract.

Access to Services for Persons with Limited English Proficiency

To the extent applicable and except to the extent that FTA determines otherwise in writing, the Recipient agrees
to comply with the policies of Executive Order No. 13166, “"Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited
Engtish Proficiency,” 42 U.S.C. § 2000d 1 note, and with the provisions of U.S. DOT Notice, “DOT Guidance to
Recipients on Special Language Services to Limited English Proficient (LEP) Beneficiaries,” 70 Fed. Reg. 74087,
December 14, 2005.

Environmental Justice

Except as the Federal Government determines otherwise in writing, the Recipient agrees to promote
environmental justice by following: (1)

Executive Order No. 12898, “Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority Populations and Low-
Income Populations,” February 11, 1994, 42 U.S.C. § 4321 note, as well as facilitating compliance with that
Executive Order, and (2) DOT Order 5610.2, “Department of Transportation Actions To Address Environmental
Justice in Minority Populations and Low-Income Populations,” 62 Fed. Reg. 18377, April 15, 1997, and (3) The
most recent and applicable edition of FTA Circular 4703.1, “Environmental Justice Policy Guidance for Federal
Transit Administration Recipients,” August 15, 2012, to the extent consistent with applicable Federal laws,
regulations, and guidance,

Environmental Protections

Compliance is required with any applicable Federal laws imposing environmental and resource conservation
requirements for the project. Some, but not all, of the major Federal laws that may affect the project include: the
National Environmental Policy Act of 1969; the Clean Air Act; the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act; the
comprehensive Environmental response, Compensation and Liability Act; as well as environmental provisions with
Title 23 U.S.C., and 49 U.C. chapter 53. The U.S. EPA, FHWA and other federal agencies may issue other
federal regulations and directives that may affect the project. Compliance is required with any applicable Federal
laws and regulations in effect now or that become effective in the future.



Geographic Information and Related Spatial Data

Any project activities involving spatial data or geographic information systems activities financed with Federal
assistance are required to be consistent with the National Spatial Data Infrastructure promulgated by the Federal
Geographic Data Committee, except to the extent that FTA determines otherwise in writing.

Geographic Preference

All project activities must be advertised without geographic preference, (except in A/E under certain
circumstances, preference for hiring veterans on transit construction projects and geographic-based hiring
preferences as proposes to be amended in 2 CFR Part 1201 ).

Organizational Conflicts of Interest

The Recipient agrees that it will not enter into a procurement that involves a real or apparent organizational
conflict of interest described as follows: (1) When It Occurs. An organizational confiict of interest occurs when the
Project work, without appropriate restrictions on certain future activities, results in an unfair competitive
advantage: (a) To that Third Party Participant or another Third Party Participant performing the Project work, and
(b) That impairs that Third Party Participant’s objectivity in performing the Project work, or (2) Other. An
organizational conflict of interest may involve other situations resulting in fundamentally unfair competitive
conditions, (3) Disclosure Requirements. Consistent with FTA policies, the Recipient must disclose to FTA, and
each of its Subrecipients must disclose to the Recipient: (a) Any instances of organizational conflict of interest, or
(b) Violations of federal criminal law, involving fraud, bribery, or gratuity violations potentially affecting the federal
award, and (4) Failure to Disclose. Failure to make required disclosures can result in remedies for
noncompliance, including debarment or suspension.

Federal Single Audit Requirements for State Administered Federally Aid Funded Projects Only
Non Federal entities that expend $750,000 or more in a year in Federal awards from ali sources are required to
comply with the Federat Single Audit Act provisions contained in U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB})
Circular No. A 133, “Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non Profit Organizations” (replaced with 2 CFR
Part 200,“Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards”
effective December 26, 2014 as applicable). Non Federal entities that expend Federal awards from a single
source may provide a program specific audit, as defined in the Circular. Non Federal entities that expend less
than the amount above in a year in Federal awards from all sources are exempt from Federal audit requirements
for that year, except as noted in Sec. 215 (a) of OMB Circular A-133 Subpart B--Audits, records must be available
for review or audit by appropriate officials of the cognizant Federal agency the New York State Department of
Transportation, the New York State Comptroliers Office and the U.S. Governmental Accountability Office (GAO).
Non Federal entities are required to submit a copy of all audits, as described above, within 30 days of issuance of
audit report, but no later than 9 months after the end of the entity’s fiscal year, to the New York State Department
of Transportation, Contract Audit Bureau, 50 Wolf Road, Albany, NY 12232. Unless a time extension has been
granted by the cognizant Federal Agency and has been filed with the New York State Department of
Transportation’s Contract Audit Bureau, failure to comply with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133 may result
in suspension or termination of Federal award payments.

Veterans Preference

Veterans Preference. As provided by 49 U.S.C. § 5325(k), to the extent practicable, the Recipient agrees and
assures that each of its Subrecipients:

(1) Will give a hiring preference to veterans, as defined in 5 U.S.C. § 2108, who have the skills and abilities
required to perform construction work required under a third party contract in connection with a Capital Project
supported with federal assistance appropriated or made available for 49 U.S.C. chapter 53, and

(2) Will not require an employer to give a preference to any veteran over any equally qualified applicant who is a
member of any racial or ethnic minority, female, an individual with a disability, or a former employee.

Safe Operation of Motor Vehicles



The Contractor is encouraged to adopt and promote on-the-job seat belt use policies and programs for its
employees and other personnel that operate company-owned vehicles, company rented vehicles, or personally
operated vehicles. The terms “company-owned” and “company-leased” refer to vehicles owned or leased either by
the Contractor or AGENCY.

The Contractor agrees to adopt and enforce workplace safety policies to decrease crashes caused by distracted
drivers, including policies to ban text messaging while using an electronic device supplied by an employer, and
driving a vehicle the driver owns or rents, a vehicle Contactor owns, leases, or rents, or a privately-owned vehicle
when on official business in connection with the work performed under this agreement.

Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) Identification Number

The municipal project sponsor is required to identify in its accounts all Federal awards received and expended,
and the Federal programs under which they were received. Federal program and award identification shall
include, as applicable, the CFDA title and number, award number and year, name of the Federal agency, and
name of the pass through entity.

CFDA number for the Federal Transportation Administration

Nonurbanized Area Formula (Section 5311) is 20.509. A Recipient covered by the Single Audit Act Amendments
of 1996 and OMB Circular A-133, “Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations,” (replaced
with 2 CFR Part 200,“Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards” effective December 26, 2014 as applicable) agrees to separately identify the expenditures for Federal
awards under the Recovery Act on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (SEFA) and the Data
Collection Form (SF-SAC) required by OMB Circular A-133. The Recipient agrees to accomplish this by
identifying expenditures for Federal awards made under Recovery Act separately on the SEFA, and as separate
rows under Hem 9 of Part 1l on the SF-SAC by CFDA number, and inclusion of the prefix “ARRA” in identifying the
name of the Federal program on the SEFA and as the first characters in Item 9d of Part 1l on the SF-SAC.



Disadvantaged Business Enterprise
Contracts over $3,500 awarded on the basis of a bid or proposal offering to use DBEs

Section a.
Separate contract goal for Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) participation

The State of New Hampshire, Department of Transportation has established a goal of

1.65% for DBE participation for this contract in lieu of the 10% national goal outlined in
Section a. of the Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Federal Clause.

By signing below the Contractor agrees to comply with the applicable Federal
Clauses.

Date: >§; T // S>o7

Company Name: Advance Transit, Inc.

Authorized Name: J. M. Tonkovich

Signature: MT&UJ@‘U\M
) ™

Title: President



Federal Certifications



RAD PDF Developer License Active
CERTIFICATION AND RESTRICTIONS ON LOBBYING

L, «J i MO KoV, %@S&W . hereby certify

(Name and title of official)

On behalf of /A&\\&UJ‘,Q [vaugt o that:
(Name of Bidder/Company Name)

» No federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of
the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an
officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, and officer or
employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection
with the awarding of any federal contract, the making of any federal grant, the
making of any federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and
the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any federal
contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

» If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid
to any person influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any
agency, a Member of Congress, and officer or employee of Congress, or an
employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the federal contract,
grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersighed shall complete and
submit Standard Form — LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying,” in
accordance with its instructions.

¥» The undersigned shall require that the fanguage of this certification be included in
the award documents for all sub-awards at all tiers (including sub-contracts, sub-
grants and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that
all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a
prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by 31 U.S.C. § 1352 (as
amended by the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995). Any person who fails to file the
required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not
more than $100,000 for each such failure.

The undersigned cettifies or affirms the truthfuiness and accuracy of the contents of the

statements submitted on or with this certification and understands that the provisions of
31 U.S.C. Section 3801, et seq., are applicable thereto.

-—
Name of Bidder/Company Name Aéluau& [Vau&"l&'] ("‘L
Type or print name J. M To <o (CHE—

Signature of authorized representativ a\\ Dated /

15

l
l

Signature of notary and SEAL N~———




RAD PDF DEMO License Active
GOVERNMENT-WIDE DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION (NONPROCUREMENT)

Instructions for Certification: By signing and submitting this bid or proposal, the
prospective lower tier participant is providing the signed certification set out below.

(1) It will comply and facilitate compliance with U.S. DOT regulations,
“Nonprocurement Suspension and Debarment,” 2 CFR part 1200, which adopts and
supplements the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (U.S. OMB) “Guidelines to
Agencies on Governmentwide Debarment and Suspension (Nonprocurement),” 2
CFR part 180,

(2) To the best of its knowledge and belief, that its Principals and Subrecipients at the
first tier:

a. Are eligible to participate in covered transactions of any Federal department or
agency and are not presently:

(1 Debarred,

(2) Suspended,

(3) Proposed for debarment,
(4) Declared ineligible,

(5) Voluntarily excluded, or
(6) Disqualified,

b. Its management has not within a three-year period preceding its latest
application or proposal been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered
against any of them for:

(1) Commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining,
attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State, or local)
transaction, or contract under a public transaction,

(2) Violation of any Federal or State antitrust statute, or

(3) Commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or
destruction of records, making any false statement, or receiving stolen
property,

¢. Itis not presently indicted for, or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a
governmental entity (Federal, State, or local) with commission of any of the
offenses listed in the preceding subsection 2.b of this Certification,

d. It has not had one or more public transactions (Federal, State, or local)
terminated for cause or default within a three-year period preceding this
Certification,

e. If, at a later time, it receives any information that contradicts the statements
of subsections 2.a - 2.d above, it will promptly provide that information to
FTA,



RAD PDF DEMO License Active

GOVERNMENT-WIDE DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION (NONPROCUREMENT)

f. It will treat each lower tier contract or lower tier subcontract under its Project
as a covered lower tier contract for purposes of 2 CFR part 1200 and 2 CFR part
180 if it:

(1) Equals or exceeds $25,000,
(2) Is for audit services, or
(3) Requires the consent of a Federal official, and

g. It will require that each covered lower tier contractor and subcontractor:
(1) Comply and facilitate compliance with the Federal requirements of 2 CFR
parts 180 and 1200, and
(2) Assure that each lower tier participant in its Project is not presently
declared by any Federal department or agency to be:

d.
e.

f.

a. Debarred from participation in its federally funded Project,.
b.
C.

Suspended from participation in its federally funded Project,

Proposed for debarment from participation in its federally funded
Project,

Declared ineligible to participate in its federally funded Project,
Voluntarily excluded from participation in its federally funded Project,
or

Disqualified from participation in its federally funded Project, and

3. It will provide a written explanation as indicated on a page attached in FTA’s
TEAM-Web or the Signature Page if it or any of its principals, including any of its first
tier Subrecipients or its Third Party Participants at a lower tier, is unable to certify
compliance with the preceding statements in this Certification Group.

Certification

Contractor

N [V c@ e

Signature of Authorized Official @W\OL\\ Date <8 /26 l-‘,r

Name and Title of Contractor's Authorized Official — & TOAKOV(CH—

Presidoor—



Contract agreement between the NH Department of Transportation

and Advance Transit Inc.

The subrecipient, Advance Transit Inc., shall comply with all applicable federal laws, regulations and
requirements as outlined in the most recent Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Master Agreement and
Federal Certifications and Assurances.

This subaward includes information required by 2 CFR Part 200 as follows:
Subrecipient Name: Advance Transit Inc.

Subrecipient DUNS number: 118080233

Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN): NH-2017-007, NH-2017-002
Federal Award Date: 2017

Period of Performance for FFY 2017 award. Start is Governor & Council approval and End Date is
12/31/2019

Federal Funds obligated by this action: $1,910,450 (Grant NH-2017-007 and NH-2017-002)

Total amount of Federal Funds obligated to subrecipient: $1,910,450 (Grant NH-2017-007 = $1,527,950
and Grant NH-2017-002 = $382,500)

Total amount of Federal award: $1,910,450

Federal Award project description, as required to be responsive to the Federal Funding Accountability
and Transparency Act (FFATA): Section 5339 Bus and Bus Facilities Program

Name of Federal Awarding Agency: Federal Transit Administration
Grantee: New Hampshire Department of Transportation

Contact Information for awarding Official: Patrick C. Herlihy, Director of Aeronautics, Rail &
Transit, Patrick.herlihy@dot.nh.gov, 603-271-2449

Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) number, name & dollar amount: FFY 2017 award.
CFDA 20.526 Section 5339 Bus and Bus Facilities Program, $1,910,450 Federal

Is this award research and development? No

Indirect cost rate for the Federal award: N/A



Graham & Graham, P.C.

Certified Public Accountants
Business Advisors & Management Consultants

The Solution Group

To the Board of Directors
and Management of Advance Transit, Inc.

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of Advance Transit, Inc. (the “Organization™) as
of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, we considered the Organization’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as
a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Organization’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Organization’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph and was not
designed to identify all deficiencics in internal control that might be material weaknesses. Given these limitations,
during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Board of Directors, and
others within the organization, and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these
specified parties.

Carbpm < Cgtpm, 1€

Graham and Graham, PC
Concord, New Hampshire
September 15, 2016
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Graham & Graham, P.C.

Centified Public Accountants
Business Advisors & Management Consultants

The Solution Group

September 15, 2016

To the Board of Directors
Advance Transit, Inc.

We have audited the financial statements of Advance Transit, Inc. (the “Organization”) for the year ended June 30,
2016, and have issued our report thereon dated September 15, 2016. Professional standards require that we
provide you with information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards, as well as
certaininformation related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such information
in our letter to you dated July 7, 2016. Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the
following information related to our audit.

Significant Audit Findings

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by the Organization are described in Note 2 to the financial statements. No new
accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during fiscal year 2016,
We noted no transactions entered into by the Organization during the year for which there is a lack of
authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements
in the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on
management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events.
Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and
because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most
sensitive estimate affecting the financial statements was:

Management’s estimate of depreciation expense is based on an estimate of the annual usage cost of
property and equipment, and is based on assigned useful lives. We evaluated the key factors and
assumptions used to develop depreciation expense in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the
financial statements taken as a whole.

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial
statement users. The most sensitive disclosure affecting the financial statements was:

The disclosure of management’s policy for recording the accounts receivable due from the States of
Vermont and New Hampshire as well as from local towns, cities and businesses within those states.
Management has not recorded an allowance for doubtful accounts as of June 30, 2016 as it believes all
amounts receivable will be ultimately collected. Future economic events impacting the states,
municipalities and local area businesses could result in collections of less than actual amounts owed.

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.

15 North Main Street, Suite 204, Concord, NH 03301 (603) 225-2944 Voice (603) 856-7635 Fax
PO Box 1661, Laconia, NIT 03247 (603) 527-8721 Voice (603) 527-8187 Fax
6 Main Street, PO Box 886, Springfield, VT 05156 (802) 885-5340 Voice (802) 885-4999 Fax
162 North Main Street, Suite 206, Barre, VT 05641 (802) 356-2423 Voice
Website: www,erahanicpa.com




Graham & Graham, P.C,

Certified Public Accountants
Business Advisors & Management Consultants

The Solution Group

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit.
Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all misstatements identified during the audit, other than those that
are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. Management has corrected all
such misstatements. In addition, none of the misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected
by management were material, either individually or in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Disagreemnents with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing
matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or the
auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management representation
letter dated September 15, 2016.

Management Consuliations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters,
similar to obtaining a “second opinion™ on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of an
accounting principle to the Organization’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s opinion
that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check
with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such
consultations with other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with mapnagement each year prior to retention as the Organization’s auditors. However, these
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition
to our retention.

15 North Main Street, Suite 204, Concord, NH 03301 (603) 225-2944 Voice (603) 856-7635 Fax
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Graham & Graham, P.C.

Ceriified Public Accountants
Business Advisors & Management Consultants

The Solution Group

Other Matters

With respect to the supplementary information accompanying the financial statements, we made certain inquiries
of management and evaluated the fonm, content, and methods of preparing the information to determine that the
information complies with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, the method of preparing it has not
changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the
financial statements. We compared and reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying accounting
records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves.

This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Directors and management of Advance Transit, Inc.
and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Very truly yours,

Cadifpmt  ~ Cagtirm 7€

Graham and Graham, PC
Concord, New Hampshire
September 15, 2016
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Graham & Graham, P.C.

Centified Public Accountants
Business Advisors & Management Consultants

The Solution Group

Independent Auditors’ Report
To the Board of Directors of
Advance Transit, Inc.
Wilder, New Hampshire

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Advance Transit, Inc. (A New Hampshire
non-profit organization), which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2016 and
2015, and the related statements of activities and changes in net assets, and cash flows for the years then
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Stafements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and .maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

PO Box 886, 6 Main Street, Springfield, VT 05156 802-885-5340 Fax 802-885-4999
162 North Main Street, Suite 206, Barre, VT 05641 802-356-2423

15 North Main Street, Suite 204, Concord, NH 03301 603-225-2944 Fax 603-856-7635

PO Box 1661, 174 Court Street, Laconia, NH 03247 603-527-8721 Fax 603-527-8187

Website: www.grahamepa.com
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Graham & Graham, P.C.
Centified Public Accountanls
Busincss Advisors & Management Consultants

The Solution Group

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Advance Transit, Inc. as of June 30, 2016 and 2015, and the changes in its net assets
and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America.

Orther Mafters — Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole.
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required
part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all inaterial respects in relation to the financial statements
as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 15,
2016, on our consideration of Advance Transit, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Organization’s internal
control over financial reporting and compliance.

Cartfpm  ~ Caagatem, 1°C
Graham & Graham, P.C.
September 15, 2016
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ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
June 30, 2016 and 2015

2016 2015
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS _
Cash $ 1,568,079 1,459,394
Accounts receivable 964,520 753,481
Pledges receivable - 3,187
Prepaid expenses 84,483 82,279
Inventory 316,870 262,430
Total current assets 2,933,952 2,560,771
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Land 263,358 263,358
Land improvements 41,684 41,684
Buildings and improvements 4,346,350 4,346,350
Transportation equipment 7,867,901 7,769,773
Communication and radio equipment 124,215 124,215
Office and shop equipment 659,699 338,332
13,303,207 12,883,712
Less accumulated depreciation 7,493,690 6,655,391
Property and equipment, net 5,809,517 6,228,321
TOTAL ASSETS $ 8,743,469 8,789,092
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 117,532 69,073
Accrued payroll expenses 162,540 143,790
Deferred revenue 1,414 1,124
Total current liabilities 281,486 213,987
Total liabilities 281,486 213,987
NET ASSETS
Unrestricted 2,145,707 1,796,667
Temporarily restricted 6,316,276 6,778,438
Total net assets 8,461,983 8,575,105
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 8,743,469 8,789,092

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

REVENUE AND SUPPORT

Federal Govermiment
State of New Hampshire
State of Vermont

State of Vermont

Rideshare

RTAP grant

Mobility management

Contributions

Sponsorship income

Interest

Other

Net assets released from restrictions

Total revenue and support

EXPENSES
Program Services
Public and other transporation
Rideshare
Rural Transit Assistance Program
Mobility mnanagement
Total program services

Support Services
General and Administrative
Fundraising
Total support services
Total expenses
Change in net assets

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

For The Year Ended June 30, 2016

Temporarily

Unrestricted Restricted Total
1,624,803 § 61,867 $ 1,686,670
312,696 366,362 679,058
317,578 - 317,578
25,300 - 25,300
5,067 - 5,067
23,736 - 23,736
1,241,371 624,880 1,866,251
70,682 - 70,682
1,608 - 1,608
15,976 - 15,976
1,515,271 (1,515,271) -
5,154,088 (462,162) 4,691,926
3,207,045 - 3,207,045
37,591 - 37,591
2,982 - 2,982
31,606 - 31,606
3,279,224 - 3,279,224
1,469,917 - 1,469,917
55,907 - 55,907
1,525,824 - 1,525,824
4,805,048 - 4,805,048
349,040 (462,162) (113,122)
1,796,667 6,778,438 8,575,105
2,145,707 $ 6,316,276 $ 8,461,983

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements




ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
For The Year Ended June 30, 2015

REVENUE AND SUPPORT

Federal Government
State of New Hampshire
State of Vermont

Stafe of Vermont

Rideshare

RTAP grant

Mobility management

Contributions

Sponsorship income

Interest

Other

Net assets released from restrictions

Total revenue and support

EXPENSES _
Program Services
Public and other transporation
Rideshare
Rural Transit Assistance Program
Mobility management
Total program services

Support Services
General and Administrative
Fundraising
Total support services

Total expenses

Change in net assets before transfers

Transfers

Change in net assets

Net assets, beginning of year - as previously reported
Adjustment - refer to Note 13

Net assets, beginning of year - as restated

Net assets, end of year

Temporarily
Unrestricted Restricted Total
3 1,630,348 3 - 8 1,630,348
308,669 56,930 365,599
333,946 - 333,946
30,000 - 30,000
14,820 - 14,820
30,253 - 30,253
1,284,189 619,791 1,903,980
75,831 - 75,831
1,437 - 1,437
1,301 - 1,301
1,494,413 (1,494,413) -
5,205,207 (817,692) 4,387,515
3,385,809 - 3,385,809
32,410 - 32,410
18,603 - 18,603
37,698 - 37,698
3,474,520 - 3,474,520
1,457,937 - 1,457,937
80,095 - 80,095
1,538,032 - 1,538,032
5,012,552 - 5,012,552
192,655 (817,692) (625,037)
{(60,305) 60,305 -
132,350 (757,387) (625,037)
1,426,198 7,535,825 8,962,023
238,119 - 238,119
1,664,317 7,535,825 9,200,142
$ 1,796,667 $ 6,778,438 $ 8,575,105

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For The Years Ended June 30, 2016 and 2015

2016 2015
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in net assets $ (113,122) § (625,037)
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 847,033 911,386
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (211,039) (55,782)
(Increase) decrease in pledges receivable 3,187 14,980
(Increase) decrease in inventory (54,440) (18,998)
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses (2,204) (8,712)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 48,459 (31,293)
Increase (decrease) in accrued payroll expenses . 18,750 21,666
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue 290 347

Total adjustments 650,036 833,594

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 536,914 208,557

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property and equipment (428,229) -
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (428,229) -
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of long-term debt - (60,304)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES - (60,304)
NET INCREASE IN CASH 108,685 148,253
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,459,394 1,311,141
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR $ 1,568,079 § 1,459,394
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF NON-CASH INFORMATION
Cash payments for interest 5 - $ 1,372

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30,2016 AND 2015

NOTE 1-NATURE OF ACTIVITIES

Advance Transit, Inc. (the “Organization”) is a voluntary, not-for-profit corporation incorporated under the
laws of the State of New Hampshire and is organized exclusively for charitable and educational purposes
within the meaning of Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. Its mission is
to provide a comprehensive transportation network for the several towns of the Upper Connecticut River
Valley Region of New Hampshire and Vermont,

NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of’ the Organization are prepared on the accrual basis, Under the accrual basis,
revenues and gains are recognized when earned, and expenses and losses are recognized when incurred.
The significant accounting policies followed by the Organization are described below to enhance the
usefulness of the financial statements to the reader.

Basis of Presentation

The Organization adheres to the Presentation of Financial Statements for not-for-profit organizations topic
of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards Codification (FASB ASC
958-205). Under FASB ASC 958-205, the Organization is required to report information regarding its
financial position and activities according to three classes of net assets. Descriptions of the three net asset
categories are as follows:

Unrestricted net assets — include both undesignated and designated net assets, which are the
revenues not restricted by outside sources and revenues designated by the Board of Directors for
special purposes and their related expenses.

Temporarily restricted net assets — include gifts and pledges for which time and donor-imposed
restrictions have not yet been made, and also includes the accumulated appreciation related to
permanently restricted endowment gifts, which is a requirement of FASB ASC 958-205-45.

Permanently restricted net assets — includes gifts which require, by donor restriction, that the
corpus be invested in perpetuity and only the income or a portion thereof be made available for
program operations in accordance with donor restrictions. Advance Transit, Inc. has no permanently
restricted net assets.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures.
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Organization considers all unrestricted, highly liquid
investments with an initial maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. As of June 30, 2016
and 2015, there were no cash equivalents.
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ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2016 AND 2015
NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Revenue Recognition

A substantial portion of the Organization’s revenue and support is derived from cost reimbursement
contracts with the States of New Hampshire and Vermont. Revenue and support is recognized when
reimbursable expenditures are incurred. Payments are received, up to each of the contracts’ respective price
limitations upon the Organization’s submittal of written requests for reimbursement of aliowable
expenditures.

Contributions

Contributions reccived are recorded as unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently restricted
support, depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor restrictions.

All donor-restricted support is reported as an increase in temporarily restricted or permanently restricted net
assets, depending on the nature of the restriction. When a restriction expires, (that is, when a stipulated time
restriction ends or a purpose restriction is accomplished), temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to
unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as net assets released from restrictions.
Contributions that are restricted by the donor are reported as increases in unrestricted net assets if the
restrictions expire in the fiscal year in which the contributions are recognized.

Pledges

Unconditional promises to give, including capital campaign pledges, are recognized as revenues in the
period received and as assets, decreases of liabilities, or expenses depending on the form of the benefits
received. Promises to give are recorded at net realizable value if expected to be collected in one year and at
fair value if expected to be collected in more than one year. Conditional promises to give are recognized
when the conditions on which they depend are substantially met. Management provides for probable
uncollectible amounts through a provision for bad debt expense and an adjustment to an allowance based on
its assessment of the amounts deemed collectible. It is the Organization’s policy to charge off uncollectible
receivables when management determines that the receivable will not be collected.

In order to ensure observance of limitations and restrictions placed on the use of resources available to
Advance Transit, Inc., separate accounts are maintained for each activity. They are as follows:

Public and other Transportation — accounts for revenue and expenses involved with operating fixed
public transportation routes as well as other non-fixed routes open to the public and expenses for
administration and direct trip reilnbursement subcontracted by other agencies or programs.

Rideshare — Used to account for revenue and expenses associated with operating rideshare.

Rural Transit Assistance Program — Used to account for revenue and expenses associated with
training in non-urbanized areas.




ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30,2016 AND 2015

NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Income Taxes

Advance Transit, Inc. is a not-for-profit organization that is exempt from income taxes under Section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and classified by the Internal Revenue Service as other than a
private foundation.

The Organization has adopted the provisions of FASB ASC 740, Accounting for Income Taxes.
Accordingly, management has evaluated the Organization’s tax positions and concluded that the
Organization had maintained its tax-exempt status, does not have any significant unrelated business
income and had taken no uncertain tax positions that require adjustment or disclosure in the financial
statements.

The Organization's Forms 990, Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax, for the years ending
June 30, 2013, 2014, and 2015 are subject to examination by the IRS, generally for three years after they

were filed.

Property and Equipment

The Organization records purchases of equipment at cost. Expenditures for property, plant and equipment
with a cost greater than $5,000 are capitalized. Depreciation and amortization are computed on the straight-
line method based on the following useful lives. Expenditures for maintenance, repairs and improvements,
which do not materially extend the useful lives of the assets, are expensed.

Years
Buildings and improvements 10-50
Land improvements 15
Transportation equipment 5-12
Communication and radio equipment 5
Office and shop equipment 5-10

The Organization’s facility and certain transportation equipment are subject to liens held by the States of
New Hampshire and/or Vermont as agents for the Federal Transit Administration or other Federal agencies
to provide for the compliance with grant requirements. The States of New Hampshire and/or Vermont also
hold the title o any equipment while subject to a lien. Substantially all of the Organization’s property and
equipment, including related financing of these assets, are subject to these requirements. Therefore, the net
assets related to property and equipment acquired through grants is reported as temporarily restricted.

Deferred revenue

The Organization records deferred revenue, which represents income covering periods beyond June 30,
2016 and unearned state transit assistance received in advance.

Designation of Unrestricted Net Assets

It is the policy of the Board of Directors to review its plans for future property improvements and
acquisitions, as well as other operating needs, from time to time and to designate appropriate sums of
unrestricted net assets to assure adequate financing of such purposes.
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ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30,2016 AND 2015

NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Advertising Costs

The Organization follows the policy of charging the production costs of advertising to expense as incurred.
Total advertising costs for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 amounted to $992 and $2,779,
respectively.

NOTE 3 -~ CASH AND CATEGORIZED RISK
There are three categories of credit risk that apply to an organization’s bank balances:
1. Insured by EDIC or collateralized with securities held by the government or by the government’s
agent in the government's name. In July 2010, Congress permanently increased the basic FDIC

insurance coverage limit to $250,000.

2. Collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution’s trust department or agent
in the government’s name.

3. Uncollateralized.

Bank balances as of June 30, 2016 are categorized below to give an indication of the credit risk assumed
at year end.

Book Bank
Balance Balance

Insured deposits $ 750,000 $ 750,000
Uninsured, collateralized by repurchase agreement secured by
U.S. governinent securities held by the bank’s trust department
with a security interest granted to Advance Transit, Inc. 817,929 964,368
Uninsured, uncollateralized - -
Cash on hand 150 -

Total $ 1,568,079 $1,714,368

Bank balances as of June 30, 2015 are categorized below to give an indication of the credit risk assumed
at year end.

Book Bank
Balance Balance

Insured deposits $ 750,000 $ 750,000
Uninsured, collateralized by repurchase agreement secured by
U.S. government securities held by the bank’s trust department
with a security interest granted 1o Advance Transit, Inc. 709,244 730,768
Uninsured, uncollateralized - -
Cash on hand 150 -

Total $ 1,459,394 $ 1,480,768
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ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2016 AND 2015
NOTE 4 - ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable include funds due the Organization under various grant award agreements.

Grants receivable included in accounts receivable as of June 30, 2016 and 2015 consisted of the following:

2016 2015
New Hampshire Department of Transportation $ 164,736 § 32,622
Vermont Agency of Transportation 75,766 40,785
Total grants receivable $ 240,502 § 73,407
Contributions:
Temporarily restricted contributions:
Town of Hanover $ 130,100 $ 127,549
Town of Hartford 75,540 75,540
Town of Norwich 12,860 12,860
City of Lebanon 112,690 112,690
Town of Enfield 5,000 5,200
Town of Canaan 9,000 8,870
Dartinouth Hitchcock Medical Center 108,199 106,895
Dartinouth College 171,491 170,187
Total contributions 624,880 619,791
Other receivables:
Contracts 67,486 108,706
Federal and state excise tax 24,985 18,555
Bus sponsors 6,667 6,429
Total other receivables 99,138 133,690

Total receivables

NOTE 5 -PLEDGES RECEIVABLE

$ 964,520 § 753,481

Pledges receivable for the capital campaign as of June 30, 2016 and 2015 consisted of the following:

Unconditional pledges were expected to be realized in the following periods:

2016 2015

In one year or less 5 - $ 3,187

NOTE 6 - LINE OF CREDIT

The Organization has available a bank line of credit for any amount up to $200,000 at June 30, 2016 and
2015. The line of credit is due on demand and secured by the business assets of the Organization. Draws
on the line of credit bear interest based on the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate plus .25% (currently 3.5%)
for the year ended June 30, 2016. There were no outstanding balances on this line of credit as of June 30,
2016 or 2015.
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ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30,2016 AND 2015

NOTE 7 - TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Temporarily restricted net assets consists of equipment and vehicles purchased with restricted
resources, thereby limiting the assets use to specified purposes throughout the useful life of the
assets, foundation grant funds received to cover the startup costs of a planned giving fund, Town
appropriations approved in 2016 but to be paid in 2017 and capital campaign pledges.

Temporarily restricted net assets are comprised of the following:
2016 2015

Net property, plant and equipment funded with restricted resources $  5691,3906 $ 6,098,530

Capital grant revenue - 56,930
Contributions reccivable 624,880 619,791
Pledges receivable - 3,187
Total $ 6316276 § 6,778,438
NOTE 8 — NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTIONS
Net assets released from restrictions are as follows:
2016 2015
Purpose restrictions accomplished: $ $
Depreciation 835,363 904,197
Expiration of purpose restrictions on capital grant revenue 56,930 -
Expiration of time restrictions on pledges receivable 3,187 14,979
Expiration of time restrictions on contributions receivable 619,791 575,237
Total net assets released from restrictions $ 1515271 $ 1494413
NOTE 9 - TRANSFERS
Transfers between unrestricted and temporarily restricted funds consist of the following:
2016 2015
Principle payments on long-term debt 3 -3 60,304
Total transfer $ $ 60,304

NOTE 10 - FUNCTIONAL ALLOCATION OF EXPENSES

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional
basis in the statement of activities. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the programs
and supporting services benefited.

NOTE 11 - ECONOMIC DEPENDENCE

The Organization receives substantial grant/contract funds from the New Hampshire and Vermont
Agencies of Transportation and is dependent upon this funding to support most of its activities and
operations. This funding is renegotiated each year and is not guaranteed for future years beyond 2016.
Loss of these funds could jeopardize the Organization’s ability to continue its activities and operations.
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ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2016 AND 2015

NOTE 12 —- SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Management has evaluated subsequent events through September 15, 2016, which is the date the financial

statements were available to be issued, and determined that no subsequent events have occurred that
would require recognition or disclosure in the financial statements.
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ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year Ended June 30, 2016
Pass-Through Program or
CFDA Identifying Award Awards
Federal Grantor Agency and Program Title Number Number Amount Expended
U.S. Department of Transportation
Major Program:
State of Venmont Agency of Transportation:
Formula Grants for Rural Areas 20.509 FT85X011-951 $ 15,611 $ 302
Formula Grants for Rural Areas 20.509 FT85X010-007 29,011 29,011
Formula Grants for Rural Areas 20.509 FT85X063-909 15,000 15,000
Formula Grants for Rural Areas 20.509 FT18X062 3,581 3,581
Formula Grants for Rural Areas 20.509 FT18X063-902 150,000 150,000
Formula Grants for Rural Areas 20.509 FT1885X011-931 190,000 190,000
Formula Grants for Rural Areas 20.509 FT18X063-702 912 912
Formula Grants for Rural Areas 20.509 FT85X011-891 206,058 206,058
State of New Hampshire Department of
Transportation:
Formula Grants for Rural Areas 20.509 NH-18-X046 1,630,349 1,630,349
Formula Grants for Rural Areas 20.509 NH-18-X046 572 572
Subtotal CFDA 20.509 2,225,785
Total Major Programs 2,225,785
Other Programs:
State of New Hampshire Department of
Transportation:
Bus and Bus Facilities Formula Program 20.526 NH-04-0006 47,706 47,706
State of Vermont Agency of Transportation;
Federal Transit Capital Investment Grants 20.500 FT040021-004 199,665 199,665
Total Federal Transit 247,371
Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with
Disabilities 20.513 NH-57-X004 6,000 6,000
New Freedom Program 20.521 FT57X007-001 18,107 18,107

Total Transit Services Program
Total Other Programs

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards
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ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2016
NOTE 1-REPORTING ENTITY

Advance Transit, Inc. (the “Organization™) is a voluntary, not-for-profit organization incorporated under
the laws of the State of New Hampshire (RSA 292) and is engaged to provide a comprehensive
transportation network for the several towns in the Upper Connecticut River Valley Region of New
Hampshire and Vermont. The Organization was founded in January 1984 and is headquartered in Wilder,
Vermont.

NOTE 2 - SCOPE OF THE AUDIT PURSUANT TO THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the “Schedule™) presents the activity of all Federal
award programs of Advance Transit, Inc. All Federal awards are received directly from Federal agencies
as well as Federal awards passed through other government agencies or other entities are included in the
schedule.

NOTE 3 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards has been prepared in the format as set
forth in Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Therefore, some amounts
presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the
financial statements.

The Schedule is presented using the accrual basis of accounting. It includes all Federal awards to the
Organization which had expenditure activity during the year ended June 30, 2016. Several programs are
jointly funded by the State of Vermont and State of New Hampshire appropriations in addition to Federal
Awards. The Schedule reflects only that part of the grant activity funded by Federal Awards.
NOTE 4 - CATALOG OF FEDERAL DOMESTIC ASSISTANCE (CFDA) NUMBERS

The program titles and CFDA numbers were obtained from the 2015 Catalog of Federal Domestic
Assistance.
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Graham & Graham, P.C.

Certified Public Accountants
Busincss Advisors & Management Consultants

The Solution Group

Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards

To the Board of Directors
Advance Transit, Inc.
Wilder, Vermont

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govermment Auditing Standard,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Advance Transit, Inc.
(the “Organization”), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2016, and the
related statements of activities and changes in net assets and cash flows for the year then ended, and the
related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated September 15, 2016.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Organization’s
internal control over financial reporting (“internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but
not for the pnrpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that
might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Graham & Graham, P.C,

Certified Public Accountants
Busincss Advisors & Management Consultants

The Solution Group

Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
accordance with Governnient Auditing Standards (Continued)

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Organization’s financial statements are free
of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our fests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Governmment Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s
internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Audifing Standmds in considering the Organization’s internal control and compliance.
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Graham & Graham, P.C.

Cakdsfpm  ~ Carptitm, 1€

Springfield, Vermont

September 15, 2016

VT Registration #92-0000282
NH Registration #659

ME Registration #FMF 10001129
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Graham & Graham, P.C.

Certified Public Accountants
Busincss Advisors & Management Consultants

The Solution Group

Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and on Internal
Control Over Compliance and Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by
the Uniform Guidance
To the Board of Directors
Advance Transit, Inc,
Wilder, Vermont

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Advance Tramsit, Inc.’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements
described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the
Organization’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2016. The Organization’s major
federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of the accompanying schedule
of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the federai statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Advance Transit, Inc.’s major
federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issucd by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Tifle 2
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance
require that we plan and perforn the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect
on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the
Organization’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Organization’s
compliance.

Opinion on Eacli Major Federal Program

In our opinion, Advance Transit, Inc. complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance

requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal
programs for the year ended June 30, 2016.
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Graham & Graham, P.C.
' Certified Public Accountants
Business Advisors & Management Consultants

The Solution Group

Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and on Internal
Control Over Compliance and Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by
the Uniform Guidance (Continued)

Report.on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of the Organization is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing
our audit of compliance, we considered the Organization’s internal control over compliance with the
types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to
determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over
compliance in accordance with Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and cotrect, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A maferial weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencieg, in internal control over compliance, guch that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

(ot ~ Cptitn, FC
Springfield, Vermont
September 15, 2016

VT Registration #92-0000282

NH Registration #659
ME Registration #FMF 10001129
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ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2016

Section I — Summary of Auditors’ Report

Financial Statements

Type of auditors’ report issued: Unqualified
Internal control over financial reporting:
¢  Material W eékness(es) identified? No
e Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are
not considered to be material weaknesses. No
Non-compliance material to the financial statements noted? No
Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs:
e  Material weakness(es) identified? No
¢ Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are
not considered to be material weakness(es)? No
Type of auditors’ report issued on campliance for major programs: Unqualified
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance with section
200.516 of the Uniform Guidance? Neo
Ideutification of Major Programs
Name of program or cluster CFDA number
U.S. Department of Transportation — Formula Grants for Rural Areas 20.509
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: $ 750,000
Auditee qualified as a low risk auditee under Section 200.520 of the Uniform Guidance: Yes

Section I ~ Financial Statement Findings
No current year findings.
Section III — Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

No current or prior year findings
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Van Chesnut
Executive Director
Annual salary = $108,222

Christopher Andreasson
Director of Transportation
Annual salary = $76,366

ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.

KEY PERSONNEL AND SALARIES



RESUME

Mr. Christopher Andreasson

May 13, 2008

Education:
Bachelor of Arts, City College of New York, 1974
Computer Science Courses, Community College of VT, 1999-2000

Work History:
Vermont Trausit Co., Inc.
April 1, 2008 — June 30, 2008
I am Project Manager for the merger of Vermont Transit Co., Inc. into Greyhound Lines,
Inc. based in Dallas, Texas. My duties include managing transition of accounting and
operational functions to Greyhound locations in Dallas, Texas as well as supervision of
employee training including driver re-certification for all former Vermont Transit
workers.
October 2000 — March 31, 2008

As General Manager my duties included oversight of all operations including
maintenance (14 employees and a fleet of up to 40 motor coaches), drivers (up to 60 full
time operators) and accounting (including payroll). I made all scheduling decisions for
routes that extended through 5 states and Canada. We operated 4 million miles annually
with 8-12 million dollars in annual revenue. In the past three years I directed a
consolidation of our company to improve its financial performance. This included
elimination of poorer performing routes and speeding up of remaining services to attract
new riders. This involved the elimination of management positions and redirection of
duties to remaining staff. I improved our revenue by 30% for every mile we operated and
we completed our latest fiscal year ahead of plan in profit generated.

I worked with state transportation officials in both Vermont and New Hampshire
that netted my company over $400,000 in capital and operating assistance between 2001
and 2003.
1996-2000
As one of two Dispatchers my responsibility included assigning drivers and capacity
planning. Also included in our duties was the development of driver work assignments. I
transformed our workstations to a computer-based operation using Microsoft Excel and
Access to automate various processes and improve efficiency. I also developed our first
website for distributing fare and schedule information to our customers via the internet.
1974-1995
I was a motorcoach operator based first in Burlington, VT and operated over 1.5 million
miles with a 20 year safe driving award.




Other Work

Substitute Teacher Hartford Middle School, mid 1980s
Baseball Umpire, High School Varsity, Babe Ruth and Adult VT & NH leagues 1990 to
present. .

Civic Activities:

Wilder Elementary PTA President, 1989 A
Appointed by Governor Dean as member of Governot’s Rail Advisory Committee,
Montpelier, VT 2001-2004

Appointed by Governor Douglas as member, Governor’s Tlansportatlon Operations
Advisory Council, Montpelier, VT 2005-2006.

Voted by Governor’s Rail Advisory Council as member, Rall Infrastructure
Subcommittee, 2004-present.

Appointed by Governor Douglas as member, Governor’s Rail Advisory Committee,
Montpelier, VT March 2008 to present.

Elected President in 2007 of the New England Bus Association.




Van J. Chesnut

Experience
1987 — present Advance Transit, Inc. PO Box 1027, Wilder, VT 05088
Executive Director

CEO of regional nonprofit public transportation company located near Hanover, New Hampshire and
Dartmouth College. Developed public/private partnerships and sponsorships to enable fare free fixed
route transit, resulting in high ridership and service productivity not typically found in a rural area. Led
planning, financing, and construction of capital improvements program including LEED certified
operations center, and fleet upgrades including diesel-electric hybrid buses.

1984 - 1987 Cardinal Center Warsaw, Indiana
Director, Kosciusko Area Bus Service

Directed county-wide rural public transportation system for multi-program human services agency.
Directed financing, acquisition, construction, and remodeling of operations center. Improved financial
and systems management, instituted marketing programs resulting in increased public awareness and
ridership.

1982-1984 City of Stevens Point Stevens Point, Wisconsin
Transit Manager

City Department head position responsible for employee supervision, service planning, grant writing and
reporting. Initiated Transit Development Plan and Marketing Plan that resulted in increased public
awareness and ridership.

1979-1982 United Developmental Services Columbus, Indiana
Transportation Manager

Department head position for five-county multi-program human services agency. Responsible for
personnel supervision and training, fleet maintenance, budgeting, grants administration.

Education

Purdue University Bachelor of Arts degree awarded 1978. Personality and Social Psychology
major, English minor.

Van J. Chesnut, page 2



Memberships and Honors

Founders Award, Received from Community Transportation Association of America (CTAA), 2009
Chair, New Hampshire Transit Association

Board of Directors, Vermont Public Transportation Association

Member, Upper Valley Transportation Management Association

Board of Directors, New England Transportation Institute and Museum

Transportation Research Board Panels:

TCRP A-19 Integrating School Bus and Public Transportation Services in Non-Urban Communities

TCRP A-19A(2) Vehicle Guide for Integrating School Bus and Public Transportation Services in Non-Urban
Communities

TCRP C-19 Guidebook for Evaluating Fuel Choices for Post-2010 Transit Bus Procurements: Update of
TCRP Report 38 »

International Transit Studies Program (ITSP} Mission 4, European Cities May, 1996

Member Hanover Rotary, Hanover New Hampshire

References
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